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EUR 000’s 2013 2012

ports & Maritime 97,028 81,220 

airports 60,801 57,692

Mining & Tunnelling 29,309 36,518

general industry 40,566 44,642

Total 227,704 220,072
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EUR 000’s 2013 2012

americas 42,821 37,316

europe & africa 95,114 101,197

Middle east & india 30,826 24,205

far east 42,975 29,192

australasia & se asia 15,968 28,162

Total 227,704 220,072
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Cavotec SA & Subsidiaries 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

EUR 000’s

InCoME STATEMEnT ITEMS

revenue from sales of goods  227,704  220,072  189,969  144,960  125,258 

Gross operating Result (EBITDA)  15,027  21,736  17,191  15,763  12,270 

operating Result (EBIT)  10,506  17,978  12,684  12,387  8,951 

Profit for the year  10,453  12,192  5,844  8,006  5,200 

Total comprehensive income  4,718  13,018  7,018  11,005  6,521 

BAlAnCE ShEET ITEMS

non-current assets  108,696  106,141  98,027  72,885  65,802 

of which goodwill  60,479  61,646  61,930  44,784  44,089 

current assets  97,013  94,271  78,762  62,538  57,849 

cash and cash equivalents  13,928  10,313  12,952  12,203  10,957 

Total assets  219,637  210,725  189,741  147,626  134,609 

Total equity  (108,769)  (106,829)  (94,873)  (76,807)  (66,917)

interest-bearing liabilities  (50,007)  (34,828)  (36,664)  (31,878)  (32,812)

non-interest-bearing liabilities  (60,861)  (69,067)  (58,205)  (38,941)  (34,880)

Total equity and liabilities  (219,637)  (210,725)  (189,741)  (147,626)  (134,609)

CASh flow ITEMS

cash flow from operating activities  (713)  11,900  5,164  10,951  8,594 

cash flow from financial activities  14,056  (5,035)  2,712  2,568  6,551 

cash flow from investing activities  (5,103)  (12,183)  (6,707)  (8,545)  (3,295)

Cash flow for the year  8,240  (5,318)  1,169  4,974  11,850 

PRofITABIlITy AnD PRofITABIlITy-RElATED kEy fIGURES

order intake 245,961 224,984 215,876  144,181  143,694 

gross operating margin 6.6% 9.9% 9.0% 10.9% 9.8%

operating margin 4.6% 8.2% 6.7% 8.5% 7.1%

interest coverage 8.6x 14.2x 8.1x 7.0x 4.7x

return on average capital employed (roace) 6.3% 8.3% 4.6% 7.3% 6.1%

return on equity (roe) 9.7% 12.0% 6.9% 11.0% 8.2%

CAPITAl STRUCTURE AnD CAPITAl STRUCTURE-RElATED kEy fIGURES

net debt  (36,070)  (24,511)  (23,708)  (19,651)  (21,850)

net debt/equity ratio 33.2% 22.9% 25.0% 25.6% 32.7%

equity/assets ratio 49.5% 50.7% 50.0% 52.0% 49.7%

leverage ratio 2.4x 1.1x 1.4x 1.2x 1.8x

financial inforMaTion 
in suMMary

SToCk PERfoRMAnCE*

number of shares issued 71,397,220 71,397,220 71,397,220 63,632,700 63,632,700

closing price seK 31.40 24.00 13.75 - -

closing price(1) eur 3.54 2.80 1.54 1.95 1.29

Market cap(1) (million) eur 253.1 199.7 110.2 123.9 81.9

Dividend(1) eur 0.041 0.041 0.017 0.023 0.015

eps(1) eur 0.147 0.173 0.089 0.125 0.082

(1) at end of the year prevailing exchange rate
* for the year 2009-2011 the company was listed on the NZX
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St. lawrence Seaway, Canada
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2013 was a good year for cavotec, especially with regards to the 
internal growth and development of our organisation. it was also an 
eventful and demanding period, as we had foreseen 2013 to become 
a year of consolidation and preparation for future expansion. after two 
years of strong growth, we had forecasted 2013 to be a relatively 
calmer year regarding revenue and order intake development. as 
you can see from the following pages, the end result was lower than 
forecasted. nevertheless, 2013 was a milestone year for our core 
innovation MoorMaster™, something i will explore in greater detail on 
further in this message.  

we are also very pleased to see that our share price continued to 
gain value by some 30% in 2013 (70% in 2012), underlining our 
shareholders’ strong support and a good understanding of our 
business model and long-term strategies. cavotec was also up-graded 
to become a Midcap company on the nasDaQ oMX stockholm on 
January 2nd, 2014.  

oUR MAIn ChAllEnGES 
our challenges came primarily due to a continued slowdown in some 
sectors like Mining and general industry, especially during the second 
half of the year.

furthermore, in the first half of the year, we experienced a continued 
postponements of several large projects, which temporarily impacted 
order levels. fortunately this trend changed dramatically in the second 
half and brought about a strong and healthy order intake in general 
for the full year. however, these projects will be delivered in 2014 and 
beyond, leaving us with a significant shortfall in revenues in 2013. This 
drop in volume constitutes one of the main reasons for the temporary 
lowering of our overall profits for the year. 

The necessary restructuring of our cavotec ineT 
operations in the us placed a heavy 

burden on our overall profitability. 
while we expect a noticeable 

improvement of cavotec 
ineT’s operations in 2014, 
we foresee it will still take 
12 to 18 months before 

cavotec ineT is positioned 
to realise its full potential.

as you might recall from our 
previous reports, we are also 
engaged in an on-going legal 

dispute in the us, with our ex-
partner, the former owner 

of cavotec ineT. Despite our best efforts to resolve this issue as soon 
as possible (and thus move forward), we have to accept and live 
through the formal procedures and steps of a legal dispute in the us. 
Due to the seriousness of the allegations in our counterclaim (involving 
theft, serious misconduct, and unethical business practices of our ex-
partner and others) we are committed to undertake whatever steps 
are necessary to bring this matter to a final judgement and resolution. 
The court hearings are scheduled to start in october 2014, and are 
foreseen to last for some 4-5 weeks.

oUR MAIn oPPoRTUnITIES
on a positive note, 2013 brought about a very significant 
accomplishment for the group. we received some five MoorMaster™ 
orders for a total of approximately eur 20 million, with an additional 
milestone order for approximately eur 25 million in february 2014 
from the st. lawrence seaway in canada. This meant that in 2013 
we were finally able to record a genuine, global breakthrough for 
automatic mooring technology. we have worked hard and consistently 
over the past 10 years to achieve this goal, so we are delighted to see 
this positive development of our MoorMaster™ business.

InVESTInG In CAVoTEC
as described in earlier annual reports, introducing innovative 
technologies and improving industry standards takes time. it is 
therefore encouraging - once in a while - when you can clearly see 
that the efforts and work undertaken to reach a long-term goal comes 
to fruition. in the past few years, we have seen a number of our major 
investment areas become an important part of our business and 
thereby start contributing to our future development. This achievement 
is a great gratification to all our employees, and will encourage us to 
move forward with confidence and determination. 

investing in cavotec should be considered as a medium to long-term 
investment in a solid company with a long-term perspective, providing 
steady value creation through strong growth while achieving good and 
consistent profitability levels. Despite not reaching all our targets in 
2013, we believe that with our strong order intake, and by having 
resolved the majority of issues at cavotec ineT, we are now well 
positioned for a period of strong and sustained growth. we are fully 
committed to work in this direction and to meet all our financial goals 
in the years to come. 
    

 lugano, March 2014
  
          

 Stefan widegren
 Chairman  
 

The chairMan’s 
perspecTive
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our innovative technologies continued to drive growth in several niche 
and rapidly growing markets. airports and ports & Maritime were 
strong, while, as we forecast in 2012, Mining & Tunnelling and general 
industry were weaker.  

we also continued to take the necessary steps to ensure the group’s 
future growth and competitiveness by, for example, continuing to refine 
our operational structure in order to maximise synergies and minimise 
costs. These factors ensured that 2013 was a good year for the group, 
despite macro economic uncertainty in some areas. 

kEy fIGURES
after growing 31.0% in 2011 and 15.8% in 2012, we had forecasted 
2013 to achieve approximately 10% growth in revenues and order 
intake. however, revenues ended up lower than forecasted, increasing 
with approximately 3.5% to eur 228 million (eur 220 million).

operating result amounted to eur 10.5 million compared to eur 18 
million in 2012. organic growth was 6.5%, while the exchange rate 
fluctuation detracted 3.3%.

excluding the eur 2 million cost related to on-going litigation in the 
us, adjusted operating result reached eur 12.5 million. financial 
items were unchanged while the recognition of deferred tax assets 
contributed to a net profit of eur 10.5 million.

order intake grew with approximately 9.3% to eur 246 million (eur 
225 million), translating into a record level order book for fy13. i 

am pleased to report this trend 
has continued into the first two 

months of 2014 with the 
february 2014 order book 
amounting to a record of 
eur 143.6 million.

revenues derived from 
sales in europe dropped 
below 40 per cent for the 

first time in the group’s 
history. The americas, the 

far east and the Middle east 
were cavotec’s second, 

third and 

fourth largest markets respectively. This is a development i welcome 
wholeheartedly. as europe recedes in importance as a market, we 
are already growing our presence in newer, emerging markets where 
growth potential is significantly higher.

A yEAR of RECoRD oRDERS AnD A woRlD-fIRST
our ports & Maritime segment grew in a market that was shrinking 
overall. Key drivers of this growth were our flagship innovative 
technologies MoorMaster™, alternative Maritime power (aMp) 
and automated stacking crane (asc) technologies. our customers 
continue to demand automation and electrification systems such as 
these – areas where cavotec is a well-established supplier and a 
technological innovator. 

in an excellent example of this, in July we announced a unique order 
for a combined and fully integrated aMp and MoorMaster™ system 
– the very first of its kind anywhere in the world – for a passenger 
ferry application in norway. The degree of automation in this system 
is unprecedented, and is set to deliver considerable efficiency and 
environmental benefits. it will also serve as an excellent reference for 
other potential customers who are looking to simplify their operations, 
and make them safer and more environmentally friendly. 

in november, it was announced that the group had secured the largest 
single MoorMaster™ order to date for eur 10 million, the first such 
order in africa. furthermore, this order was only the initial phase of a 
three-part project. 

and in another first for MoorMaster™, we are supplying 18 
MoorMaster™ units to a bulk handling application in narvik, norway. 
This will be the first bulk MoorMaster™ application in europe, and 
illustrates the potential the technology has in this and other markets. 
MoorMaster™ is increasingly well established, and widely recognised 
as the safest and most efficient way to moor ships. 

Demand for our aMp systems was especially strong in 2013. we 
received orders for these systems from a variety of customers for a 
total of eur 12 million. cavotec has a uniquely comprehensive shore 
power offering, which includes medium and low voltage systems for 
ship-based and shore-based applications. 

as a growing number of regulatory requirements regarding emissions 
in ports come into force, we are likely to see demand for shore power 
technologies increase. as a well-established supplier of these systems – 
cavotec’s first aMp system went on line in 1985 – the group is well placed 
to grow its already strong position as a key supplier of these systems.   

Despite challenges in certain markets in 2013, Cavotec’s diverse product mix and evolving geographical presence ensured the 
Group performed strongly, and was able to report its largest order book on record. 

The ceo’s 
reporT
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Turning to airports, with the addition of fuelling systems to our e3 gate 
range of services, our customer offering became complete, thereby 
further improving our product offering. customers find it easier to 
approach cavotec to provide a comprehensive range of equipment 
and services, than dealing with several different suppliers. 

The us market was especially strong throughout the year. we 
were awarded and completed a eur 10 million project at phoenix 
international airport, where we installed air conditioning units onto 
some 40 passenger bridges. 

in november, we announced orders totalling eur 13 million for our 
airports systems for customers in europe, the Middle east and india. 
These orders – for a variety of systems – emphasise the group’s 
technical expertise and geographical scope.

The general industry market unit registered growing interest in 
automation and radio remote control systems, and the electrical 
vehicles (ev) segment also delivered increased demand. 

oPERATIonS
on the operations level, 2013 was another critical year for the group. 
we took several initiatives in different areas to improve our internal 
operational efficiency to generate synergies, and therefore prepare the 
group for growth. 

we concluded the reorganisation of cavotec germany, where cavotec 
fladung completed its move to new, larger premises outside frankfurt. 
also in germany, we merged cavotec Meyerinck with cavotec alfo 
to better serve customer demand. and in the us, we completed the 
merger of cavotec Dabico and cavotec ineT manufacturing facilities. 

given the strength of demand in china, india and the us, we employed 
several new staff members to strengthen our sales and engineering 
teams in these increasingly important markets. This is to ensure that we 
focus resources where they are most needed and take full advantage 
of opportunities that exist. 

in china, for example, to keep pace with our growth there and across 
asia as a whole, we opened a new, larger facility in shanghai. The 
facility will serve customers in all four of our market units.

we also started operations in brazil, an indicator of the growth potential 
we see in the country. cavotec brazil was formally established in 2012, 
and day-to-day operations got underway in 2013. 

we also oversaw the beginning of the introduction of our new 
enterprise research planning (erp) initiative. complete introduction 
will take three to five years. This new erp system is a step-change for 
our organisation and will ensure our internal operating system will be 
contemporary, user-friendly and will improve our operational efficiency.

lookInG AhEAD
i look ahead with optimism for the group as a whole. while conditions 
in some markets remain challenging, especially for Mining & Tunnelling, 
our two largest market units – airports and ports & Maritime – seem 
set for continued growth in 2014 and beyond. Development in general 
industry is likely to be flat in 2014, but our technological advantage 
and product mix, and our established position with major suppliers on 
the market, will ensure that this units’ prospects to return to growth in 
the years ahead are strong. 

ports & Maritime will likely be driven by continued product innovation in 
automation and electrification systems. and airports, while innovation will 
of course continue to play a role, a primary driver for our growth in the 
segment will be our proven ability to integrate advanced ground support 
systems, which makes it more efficient for customers to work with cavotec. 

while the outlook for Mining & Tunnelling appears challenging, we see 
opportunities for future growth for cavotec in the provision of systems 
that improve operational efficiency. we are an established supplier to 
the major mining groups – such as sandvik and atlas copco – and 
despite a current drop in investment in new equipment, we continue to 
provide retrofitting, and engineering services. human operator interface 
(hoi) systems also present a considerable opportunity for the group in 
these sectors. it is generally recognised in these industries that there is 
substantial potential for the types of technologically advanced systems 
that cavotec is bringing to the market – perhaps not in 2014, but 
certainly in the years ahead. 

in general industry, we also have significant scope for growth with hoi 
systems, as well as ev (electrical vehicles) solutions, an area where we 
are already well established and continue to work with several large 
suppliers in the us and europe. 

order intake over the last two quarters of 2013 has been weighted 
towards larger projects with longer delivery times, opposed to day-
to-day business with short delivery times, providing management with 
improved visibility. This development combined with recent market 
activity and enhanced performance of our cavotec ineT operations, 
indicates a return to our historic growth rate with double-digit increase 
in the rate of growth towards 2h14. 

we foresee quite a slow start with lower revenues in 1Q14, while 
revenues are expected to grow rapidly in the following quarters. for 
the year 2014 our target is eur 250 million in revenues and an ebiT 
margin of 8%.  

 lugano, March 2014
  
          

 ottonel Popesco
 Chief Executive Officer  
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CAVoTEC’S BUSInESS MoDEl
cavotec’s business concept is to design, engineer and supply 
innovative products and systems that enable a wide variety of industry 
sectors to improve safety, efficiency and environmental sustainability. 
we build long-term relationships with customers that drive operational 
efficiency and improve return on investment.  

STRUCTURE
The group’s structure is designed to ensure our customers receive the 
local support they need, backed by our global engineering experience 
and resources. 

Cavotec Centres of Excellence
cavotec’s research, development and manufacturing operations are 
conducted at its centres of excellence (coe). More information on our 
coe on page 98 of this report. 

Cavotec sales companies
cavotec now has an extensive network of local sales companies in 
some 40 countries all around the world. These companies ensure 
that we have the sales presence and technical know-how needed to 
provide our customers with outstanding service, further sustained by 
relationships developed over the long-term.

STRATEGy
Unrivalled customer service and engineering excellence
our overriding focus is high quality service and advanced engineering. 
our customers’ operations are dependent on cavotec’s products 
fulfilling highly stringent service demands. furthermore, our pricing 
capacity is determined by the high engineering content of our products. 
Thus, quality and engineering are our primary competitive advantages.

Attract and retain highly skilled and talented staff
cavotec offers a positive and rewarding work environment for 
employees. we cultivate a friendly, professional working atmosphere 
where fresh thinking and a willingness to explore new approaches 
are encouraged. an open working environment, that fosters the free 
exchange of ideas and mutual respect between individuals, underpins 
our unique capabilities as a global engineering group.

Organic growth through innovative products, systems 
delivery and project management
cavotec is targeting strong organic growth going forward. Throughout 
the group’s history, we have invested in innovative products including 
MoorMaster™ automated mooring systems, alternative Maritime 

power systems for ships, pre conditioned air systems (sub-freezing 
cooling of aircraft) and azipod marine slip rings. we are constantly 
alert to new product areas and segments, two of the most recent 
being human operator interface and electric vehicles. such systems 
have achieved, or are expected to achieve, structural, above market 
growth. in addition, as part of our long-term growth strategy, we 
are actively growing our system servicing, project management and 
system integration offerings. 

Acquisitions
cavotec’s management has identified some 10 to 15 possible 
future acquisition targets in cavotec’s business areas. all of these 
candidates are, cavotec’s management believes, leading players in 
their respective niches. They are well structured, profitable, reputable 
and of a manageable size. 

Continued international expansion
cavotec aims to continue its successful international expansion, both 
organically and through acquisitions. we are active in, and continue to 
target regions and segments where we believe growth will be strong. 
our global reach provides a compelling argument for customers 
worldwide to use our products. 

Proven mission-critical products and system integration
since its foundation, we have focused on providing high quality products 
with an increasing degree of engineering content. our consistent 
approach in this respect has won the group a solid reputation that we 
strive to maintain and capitalise on. 

The majority of our products are considered key components in 
equipment produced by oeM customers or by end customers. in 
many cases our products make up a relatively small portion of the 
total cost of a final product or system, while the income lost from 
disruptions could be significant for end-customers. Thus, cavotec 
has strong negotiating and pricing powers, and is shielded from cost 
cutting initiatives. in addition to the above, we continue to build our 
role as a systems integrator, and have demonstrated our capacity to 
manage projects valued at more than eur 30 million.

business
MoDel
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Starting in Sweden in 1974, Cavotec was a fledgling organisation, as yet unproven on the global marketplace. Steadily, the 
company began to grow and develop its international character, so evident in the Group today. By always looking ahead and readily 
accepting the challenges faced by all dynamic organisations, Cavotec has become truly “local everywhere”.

cavoTec’s
TiMeline

1974

incorporation  
of specimas ab in 
sweden

1976

specimas ab  
renamed cavotec 
ab

1984

incorporation  
of cavotec  
sales company  
in finland

acquisition of 
specimas spa in 
italy

1986

incorporation  
of cavotec sales 
company in the 
united Kingdom

1988

incorporation  
of cavotec sales 
companies  
in canada, italy 
and norway

1989

incorporation of 
cavotec group 
holdings nv in the 
netherlands

1990

incorporation of 
cavotec sales 
company in the 
netherlands

acquisition of cTa 
srl in italy

incorporation 
of eT power 
connectors ab  
in sweden

2007

listing of cavotec 
Msl on the new 
Zealand stock 
exchange

group corporate 
office is established 
in switzerland

reverse acquisition 
with Msl

incorporation  
of cavotec sales 
company in russia

1991

incorporation  
of cavotec  
sales companies 
in australia, france 
and the us

1993

incorporation  
of cavotec  
sales companies in 
germany and the 
uae

1995

incorporation  
of cavotec  
sales companies 
in hong Kong and 
shanghai

1996

incorporation  
of cavotec 
sales company in 
argentina

1997

acquisition of alfo 
apparatebau gmbh in 
germany

incorporation  
of cavotec  
sales company  
in singapore

1999

acquistion of Metool pty ltd. 
in australia

acquisition of rMs 
enrouleurs sa in france

incorporation of cavotec 
sales company in Denmark

2002

acquisition of gantrex 
group in canada, 
south africa and 
the us

2004

acquisition of 
fladung gmbh in 
germany

cavotec group and 
Mooring systems 
ltd. sign sales 
agreement

acquisition of 
Micro-control as in 
norway

cavotec marks  
30-year 
anniversary

2011

announcement 
of scheme of 
arrangement and 
listing of a swiss 
holding company on 
nasDaQ oMX

incorporation of 
cavotes sales 
company in spain

incorporation of 
cavotec sales 
company in brazil

acquisition of ineT 
group in the us

cavotec sa listed 
on nasDaQ oMX 
stockholm

2012

acquisition of 
combibox in sweden

1st anniversary of the 
listing on nasDaQ 
oMX

2013

cavotec wins largest 
MoorMaster automated 
mooring order to date 
in south africa

2005

incorporation of 
cavotec sales 
company in india

2008

acquisition of the Dabico 
group in us and uK

acquisition of Meyerinck 
gmbh in germany

Divestment of gantrex 
operations

2009

Milestone order 
received for pcair for 
bahrain international 
airport
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“Today, the Port of los Angeles has more AMP-connected berths than any port worldwide. our work with Cavotec 
over the past decade has made it possible for us to meet state emissions requirements and continue to lower 
ship emissions at the los Angeles trade gateway. we are most appreciative of our partnership with Cavotec and 
the manufacturing jobs they have created here in Southern California.” 

Arley Baker, Port of los Angeles.
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Ports & Maritime generated the highest revenue of the MUs, representing approximately 43% of total 
revenues for the Group, amounting to EUR 97 million. Order Intake is slightly higher than last year and is 
the highest compared to the other MUs (44% of the total order intake of the Group), amounting to EUR 
109.3 million. Order Book increased by 20.1% compared to last year, amounting to EUR 64.4 million.

SoME of oUR MAjoR CUSToMERS In ThIS MARkET UnIT:

ABB • Aker • APMT • Canrig • Cargotec • China Harbour Engineering • Dalian Huarai • DP World • HHI • Huisman
Khalifa Port • Konecranes • Max Streicher • MSC • Narvik • National Oilwell Varco • Port of Los Angeles • Port of Long Beach • PSA • SLSMC
Statoil • Transnet National Ports Authority (TNPA) • ZPMC

Accumulated Revenues
EUR 97,028 thousands

43%

56%

44%
Accumulated Order Intake
EUR 109,342 thousands

Order Book
EUR 64,427 thousands

FY12 Revenues
EUR 81,220 thousands

FY13 Revenues
EUR 97,028 thousands

+19.5%

porTs & MariTiMe

Cavotec AMPtainer for PIl, Port of los Angeles
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“Despite a flat market for port equipment as a whole, order intake 
for the unit was resilient in 2013, a year in which we won our largest 
MoorMaster™ order to date, secured our largest oil and gas project 
ever, and began work on a world first application that will combine aMp 
and MoorMaster™ in a single system.”

“In a sluggish market, we saw a marked increase in interest 
in our advanced technologies. It was a good year for new 
products, and in many ways, I’d say that this is the highlight 
of 2013.”

“as ports and shipping lines face increasing pressure to reduce 
emissions – in the form of legal requirements and public sentiment – 
it’s likely that aMp will continue to register growing demand, from an 
already strong base.”  

“The next five years will be very important for the wider application of 
aMp. if the market continues to develop strongly, i expect it to become 
a standard across the industry.” 

“we also see substantial potential 
for MoorMaster™. There are 

many applications where 
MoorMaster™ is the only 

viable solution to improve 
operational safety and 

efficiency. it’s ideal 
where customers want 
to cut turn-around 
times, reduce vessel 
motion, or increase 

capacity without having 
to invest in costly enlargement 

projects. it’s a niche market, 
and it’s picking 

up.”

“in november we announced our largest order for the technology to 
date, from Transnet national ports authority (Tnpa), for an application 
in south africa. we’re seeing growing interest in MoorMaster™ 
elsewhere in africa, further afield, and for use in lock and offshore 
applications.”

“The year was also strong for our growing oil and gas offering, with 
primary demand drivers being safety and automation. in august, we 
announced our largest single order to date in the segment, to supply, 
install and commission stainless steel drag chains for an application in 
the north sea.

A Cavotec world first
“in the summer, we announced an order for the very first combined 
automated mooring and shore power system for the world’s first 
battery-powered passenger ferry application in norway. This project 
really is a joint effort from across cavotec, involving our engineers in 
italy, new Zealand and the uK, and our sales staff in norway.”

“in this project, you’ve got two signature cavotec technologies – 
MoorMaster™ and aMp – combined with our automatic plug-in 
system (aps), to create an entirely new system that will moor the ferry 
and connect it to shore side power.”

“This project illustrates really well one of cavotec’s key strengths: our 
range of products from various sectors that can be applied to resolve 
specific problems. we control all steps from manufacturing to sales 
and, together with customers, we deliver solutions that meet specific 
requirements.”

“in addition to aMp and MoorMaster™, our motorised cable reels for 
high-speed, automated container handling applications are performing 
strongly – although these are areas where we could make further 
improvements.”

“other systems that supported the strong performance of the unit in 
2013 were panzerbelt crane protection systems, radio remote controls 
and ship propulsion systems.”

Meeting customers’ key concerns
“customers’ key concerns are competitiveness, and of course 

As automated systems and environmentally conscious technologies continue to be top priorities for port authorities and shipping 
lines alike, Cavotec’s Ports & Maritime market unit performed strongly in 2013, despite tough overall market conditions. Ports & 
Maritime Market Unit Manager, Luciano Corbetta, explains.

susTainable, efficienT porTs
anD TerMinals
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With more than 28 years’ experience 
in shore power, we offer a full range 
of low and high voltage AMP equipment 
including AMP Fix, AMP Mobile 
and AMPtainer. 

 

28%

500

80,000

90%

of post-Panamax 
vessels due for delivery
by 2015 will be  
fitted with Cavotec AMP. 

As of August 2013, our MoorMaster™ automated 
mooring systems had carried out some 80,000 mooring 
operations, at container, Ro/Ro, bulk handling and lock 
applications. 

Cavotec develops uniquely innovative systems for the ports and terminals sector that include Alternative Maritime Power, 
MoorMaster™ automated mooring, motorised cable reels, Panzerbelt cable protection systems, radio remote controls, 

cable chains and ship propulsion systems. In 2013, we pioneered the world’s first ever integrated automated mooring and 
shore power system. Here are a few more key achievements of our Ports & Maritime market unit. 

1 Source: Entec UK Ltd. 

Cavotec has pioneered the world’s 
first integrated automated mooring 

and shore power system. 

Connecting to shore power 
reduces NOx, SOx and 
particulate matter or PM 
emissions by 90%.(1)

By 2015, 500 container
vessels will be fitted 
with Cavotec AMP 
systems.

Uniquely innovative systems 

CLEANER, MORE EFFICIENT PORTScleaner, More efficienT porTs

(1) source: entec uK ltd.
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safety. They’re also looking for reliability: equipment that delivers 
better value for money over a long service life, rather than a lower 
purchase price for a sub-standard product. There’s currently a great 
deal of interest in our automated systems, especially in the bulk and 
container handling segments.”

“our systems give customers – not just oeMs, but end-users – the 
advantages they need in a very tough market.”

A unique, comprehensive offering
“we offer our clients a variety of products for use in terminals and 
on board ships. increasingly, we’re in a position to offer end-users a 
full range of these products: everything supplied by one company.”

“so at a container handling application, you might have a customer 
buying MoorMaster mooring units, aMp systems, and motorised 
cable reels for container cranes. This comprehensive system offering 
is something our competitors struggle to compete with.”

“another aspect that makes the cavotec offering so unique, is our 
focus on listening to customers and delivering what they actually 
want. This might sound obvious, but it’s often overlooked. 

furthermore, we’re local, almost everywhere. If you want 
to listen to your customers, you have to be close to your 
customers. Sales is a continuous process – not a one-off 
transaction.”

Research & Development
The ports & Maritime unit carries out the bulk of its research 
and development at cavotec specimas in italy, and cavotec 
MoorMaster™ in new Zealand. cavotec specimas designs and 
manufactures aMp systems, motorised cable reels, panzerbelt cable 
protection systems and marine propulsion systems. 

The unit also operates manufacturing centres, for example in 
china, the us and elsewhere, which enable us to stay close to our 
customers and reduce their supply chain costs.

“looking ahead, we’ll continue to focus on product development, 
particularly automation, in systems such as e-rTgs, where we’ve 
made substantial investment, and aps, a technology that provides 
automated connection and disconnection of e-rTgs while using 
motorised cable reels fitted with fiber optics.”

“The ports & Maritime unit, and the group as a whole, will also 
continue to position cavotec as a provider of systems, rather than 
components. This is important for generating revenue and elevating 
the perception of cavotec in the eyes of customers.”

“we’ll also be reinforcing our after-sales service. we’re already 
strong in after-sales, and it’s an area that’s becoming more important 
for customers.”
 
 

cleaner, More efficienT porTs
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SoME of oUR MAjoR CUSToMERS In ThIS MARkET UnIT:

Aeromexico • Airbus •  Boeing Corporation • Bombardier • Cargolux • ClaVal • Dubai Airport • Emirates Airline 
Frankfurt Airport • Heathrow International Airport • Hong-Kong Int’l Airport • LAN Chile • Lufthansa • Munich Airport • New Delhi Airport 
Oslo Airport • Paris CDG Airport • Phoenix Int’l Airport • Shanghai Airport • Siemens • US Air Force

airporTs
Airports is the second MU in terms of revenues for the Group, amounting to approximately 27% of total 
revenues, coming in at EUR 60.8 million. Order Intake grew to 28% of Group total, amounting to  
EUR 67.7 million. Order Book reached EUR 36.6 million, increasing by 22.4% compared to last year.

Accumulated Revenues
EUR 60,801 thousands

27%

32%

28%
Accumulated Order Intake
EUR 67,650 thousands

Order Book
EUR 36,621 thousands

FY12 Revenues
EUR 57,692 thousands

FY13 Revenues
EUR 60,801 thousands

+5.4%

frankfurt Airport, Germany 
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bahrain international airport, where eighteen such units have been in 
operation since 2011. so sub-freezing pca is certainly important to 
the group, but it’s equally important that we continue to offer customers 
conventional pca systems and related technologies according to their 
specific requirements, from DX to central systems.”

“we also launched a fuelling element to our e3 gate concept during 
the inter airport europe exhibition in october, making the e3 gate 
one of the most uniquely integrated aircraft servicing systems available 
today.”

“we call it e3 gate because it delivers improvements in ergonomics, 
economy and the environment, and supplies parked aircraft with 400hz 
power, pca, blue and potable water and sewage – and now fuel – via 
underground pit systems. This makes for an uncluttered tarmac around 
aircraft, thus improving safety and operational efficiency.”

“in november, we announced airports orders worth eur 13 million, 
with projects in locations as diverse as the Middle east, india and 
norway. These orders included two projects at Dubai international 
airport, where we are supplying a large number of pca units, pop-up 
utility pits and electrical converters. The equipment will be installed at 
the airport’s 17 new stands, four of which will serve wide-body aircraft 
(like the a380), and for the airport’s expo area.” 

“It’s not only what you sell. It’s how you sell it.”

System sales: tuned in to customer needs
“it’s not only what you sell. it’s how you sell it: we believe that system 
sales and integration are very important for the future growth of the 
airports unit. This is because our customers are increasingly looking 
for a “one-stop-shop” when improving existing infrastructure and 
commissioning new-build projects. so not only are we continually 
developing our equipment and increasing our range of services, but 
we’re also reviewing how we supply them.”

Cooler, faster, cleaner
“in addition to a strong performance in terms of sales, 2013 also 
saw several important developments on the product side for the 
airports unit, with two of our standout systems making progress. sub-
freezing pre-conditioned air (pca) is one of these systems, the other: 
integrating a fuelling function into our e3 gate concept.” 

“current methods for cooling wide-body aircraft tend to be inefficient 
and ineffective. airlines consider their ability to maximise passenger 
comfort by cooling these aircraft quickly a key competitive differentiator. 
we offer a quick, effective and clean way of doing this.”

“our Sub-freezing PCA system cools the largest passenger 
aircraft in service today under the most severe ambient 
conditions in unbeatable operating times.”

we remain the only company in the world to have AhM997 
compliant Subfreezing PCA 

systems installed.

“not only is sub-
freezing pca just one 
of the pca systems 
we offer, we remain 
the only company in 
the world to have 
sub-freezing pca 
systems installed, 

approved and 
operational. 

T h e s e 
systems 

are at 

Cavotec’s Airports market unit provides integrated ground support systems that ensure fast, safe and clean operations at 
airports worldwide. The unit reported steady growth throughout 2013 in a wide variety of markets, with substantial projects 
being awarded in the Middle East, Europe, China and the US. A strong order book was not the only important development 
for the unit in 2013 however, with product launches and an expansion of its “one-stop-shop” offering – moves that are set to 
maximise growth potential for the years ahead. Airports Market Unit Manager, Gary Matthews, tells us more.

inTegraTeD sysTeMs,
beTTer airporTs
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5°C

Cavotec’s unique presence on the global GSE market

Cavotec is the only GSE 
manufacturer to have an 
installed, working and Airbus 
approved, fixed sub-freezing 
PCA system anywhere in the 
world.

More than 40,000 Cavotec fuel 
pits installed worldwide; more 
than all other manufacturers 

combined.

According to Boeing, there are 
currently 20,000 aircraft in 

service. By 2032, that number 
will more than double to 

41,000.(2)

According to IATA estimates, damage to 
parked aircraft by ground vehicles amounts 

to $4 billion annually. Cavotec systems 
reduce the number of vehicles servicing 

aircraft by over 50%.(1)

 

400hz           PCA             Fuel            Wet Services

Cavotec is also the only company in the 
world that designs, manufactures, 
supplies and installs all four main GSE 
services. 

Cavotec has supplied systems to every major airport and air base in the world.

40,000+

41,000

billion  $4

4:1

SIMPLER, MORE COST-EFFECTIVE 
AIRCRAFT SERVICING  

All Cavotec pit systems 
have a safety ratio of 4:1 
that supports the heaviest 
aircraft, including the A380.

siMpler, More cosT-effecTive
aircrafT servicing

(1) source: harmonization and global standards Key to a safer aviation industry, iaTa press release april 24, 2012: 
http://www.iata.org/pressroom/pr/pages/2012-04-24-01.aspx

(2) source: boeing current Market outlook 2013-2032: http://www.boeing.com/boeing/commercial/cmo/
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“system sales mean that customers are able to buy entire, integrated 
systems, rather than dealing with a large number of separate 
suppliers. it’s a service to the customer and an area we expect will 
deliver the largest amount of growth in the years ahead.” 

“while we have an excellent portfolio of products with strong day-
to-day sales, which are of course important for growth, it’s system 
sales and system integrations where we see the greatest potential.”

“we continue to improve our products, services and 
technical offering, and expect our position as a leading 
supplier of advanced utility systems to be further reinforced 
in the months and years ahead.”

“we are the only company that actually manufactures, supplies 
and integrates the key elements of gse: 400hz electrical supply, 
pca and fuel. This means that we are able to provide functional 
performance guarantees for entire systems from incoming power to 
aircraft connection.”

“our position in the market is further strengthened by the fact that 
cavotec has a fantastic sales and distribution network. This enables 
us to be genuinely close to our customers in all our key markets. 
over the years, we have developed a culture of close cooperation 
and outstanding customer service. we always strive to nurture and 
develop long-term customer relationships, rather than going for 
quick, one-off projects.”

cavotec’s airports systems are developed at four of cavotec’s nine 
centres of excellence: cavotec Dabico, cavotec fladung, cavotec 
ineT and cavotec Meyerinck. cavotec Dabico’s advanced in-
ground fuelling systems are used at airports and other applications 
worldwide. cavotec fladung leads the industry in the development of 
innovative pit and tunnel utility systems, mobile units, aircraft cables, 
connectors, tow bars and cable coilers. cavotec ineT manufactures 
pca units and 400hz converters, and is a preferred supplier for 
federal and local government in the us. cavotec Meyerinck is an 
expert supplier of advanced fuelling systems. 

looking ahead
“looking ahead to 2014 and beyond, we will be looking to 
consolidate our product range to focus on key growth areas, and 
to continue to work closely with our customers, developing those 
long-term relationships, in both established and emerging markets.”  

siMpler, More cosT-effecTive
aircrafT servicing
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SoME of oUR MAjoR CUSToMERS In ThIS MARkET UnIT:

Atlas Copco • BHP Billiton • Blumenbecker Automation • Cargotec • Caterpillar • DHI • FAM • FMG • Herrenknecht • LKAB
Normet • Pilbara Iron • Rambooms • Rio Tinto • Robbins • Sandvik • Tenova TAKRAF • ThyssenKrupp • Vale • WHBO

Mining & Tunnelling
Mining & Tunnelling revenues amounted to EUR 29.3 million for FY13, representing 13%  
of the Group’s total revenues. Order Intake amounted to EUR 28.6 million. The Order Book  
was EUR 6.4 million.

Accumulated Revenues
EUR 29,309 thousands

13%

6%

12%
Accumulated Order Intake
EUR 28,656 thousands

Order Book
EUR 6,407 thousands

FY12 Revenues
EUR 36,518 thousands

FY13 Revenues
EUR 29,309 thousands

-19.7%

Port waratah Coal Terminal - newcasle, Australia.
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The sMarTesT engineering for 
The ToughesT applicaTions
Challenging trading conditions in this segment for much of 2013 clearly affected results. However, our Mining & Tunnelling 
market unit remains a key supplier of innovative technologies that drive productivity gains for a wide variety of major industry 
actors – thus ensuring the unit is ready to take full advantage of opportunities as they arise. Peter Brandel, Mining & Tunnelling 
Market Unit Manager and Cavotec Group CTO, provides an overview of performance in 2013, takes a look at potential for future 
growth, and explains how the unit is leading innovation of niche technologies in this sector.  

to control rooms fitted with advanced remote control systems,” says 
brandel.

“These are technologies that we’ve been working with for a number 
of years – especially radio remote controls (rrc); and it’s an area 
where cavotec has been a well-known and established supplier since 
the mid-80s.”

“we’re seeing a great deal of interest in automation and 
remote control technologies.”

“last year, we registered a jump in interest in rrc systems fitted with 
video links. as a result, we have been adapting our existing systems to 
incorporate video links. This is an area where we expect to see further 
growth going forward.”

“we’re also seeing renewed interest in cable reels, one of our core 
products. Demand is growing for specialised cable reel products, and 
this is an area that we’re following and to which we’re responding.”

“looking forward, although there is currently pressure on investment 
in new machinery, we are seeing opportunities in equipment 
modernisation and in aftersales service. although cost-conscious, 
customers are still keen to improve operational efficiency, so there 
are opportunities to supply new technologies – especially automation 
systems – that increase efficiency.”

“The Mining & Tunnelling unit conducts research and development 
work at a number of cavotec’s centres of excellence, including 
cavotec specimas, cavotec connectors and cavotec Micro-control.” 

“cavotec’s position in this segment is strong: we supply a large number 
of the major mining and tunnelling oeMs, and often work closely with 
customers to develop new systems.”  

“last year was tough across the mining and tunnelling sector. falling 
commodity prices led to major contractors cutting back on investment 
in equipment, running down inventories and delaying major projects,” 
says brandel. 

“however, day-to-day orders continue to be placed – it’s a feature of 
this segment that orders tend to be smaller and regular, rather than 
large, one-off projects, as can be the case in airports and ports & 
Maritime,” he explains. 

“it should also be noted however that we, as a group, and in the Mining 
& Tunnelling unit, continue to develop the innovative technologies that 
will drive the group’s future growth. sometimes, it takes a while for 
these systems to realise their full potential in the market. cavotec is 
built on innovation, and it has been the bedrock of our success for the 
past 40 years.” 

“we continue to develop the 
innovative technologies that 

will drive the Group’s 
future growth.” 

“we’re seeing a great deal 
of interest in automation 
and remote control 
technologies that enable 
operators to do their jobs 

at a safe distance from 
dangerous machinery and/

or harsh conditions. we’re 
playing a leading role in 
the growing trend of moving 
personnel away from the 

sharp end of operations 
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AUTOMATION
Cavotec systems increase the level 
of automation, thereby improving 
safety and operational efficiency.

SUSTAINABILITY
Our systems reduce 
reliance on diesel‐driven equipment, 
and improve overall efficiency, 
thus limiting environmental impact.

OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY
Our systems deliver gains
in productivity through, amongst
other factors, reduced use of 
diesel‐driven equipment
and extended service‐life. RELIABILITY

Our extensive experience 
in this segment ensures that 
our equipment is designed
and manufactured to the 
highest standards available 
anywhere in the world today.

SAFETY
The safety of personnel is of paramount 
importance to our customers, and our 
systems ensure – even in the harshest 
of environments – outstanding 
operational safety.

CLEAN, SAFE AND EFFICIENT 
MINING AND TUNNELLING

Cavotec’s innovative Mining & Tunnelling technologies improve our customers’ 
capacity to operate safely, sustainably and efficiently. Our systems increase 

the degree to which applications can be automated, and machinery remotely controlled, 
with the secure transmission of electrical power, data signals, compressed air and water. 

clean, safe anD efficenT
Mining & Tunnelling
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“overall, while current prospects in this sector are under pressure, 
the Mining & Tunnelling unit’s product and service offering are likely 
to ensure the unit is well placed to resume grow in the coming years.  

cavotec is a specialist supplier of mining and tunnelling equipment 
that is used at applications worldwide. with extensive experience of 
the demanding mining and tunnelling segment, cavotec is one of 
this segment’s most trusted suppliers and innovators of motorised 
cable & hose reels, hoses, power connectors, radio remote controls, 
radio remote control receiver units, spring-driven cable reels and 
cables. 

our motorised cable reels ensure the safe and efficient transfer of 
electrical power to mining and tunnelling equipment at applications 
worldwide. and our electrical connectors power equipment all over 
the world and deep into the earth. cavotec cables, while mundane, 
are also critical to mining and tunnelling operations. our explosion-
proof rrc systems enable the safe control of machinery in the 
world’s most demanding environments.

The group has long-standing relationships with major global mining 
groups such as atlas copco, bhp biliton, blumenbecker automation, 
herrenknecht, lKab, pilbara iron, rambooms, robbins, sandvik, 
Thyssenkrupp, vale, whbo and many others.

clean, safe anD efficenT
Mining & Tunnelling
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SoME of oUR MAjoR CUSToMERS In ThIS MARkET UnIT:

ABB • Alimak • Arcelor – Mittal • Al Habtoor • Costain • GE International • Konecranes • Liebherr • Linde • Manitowoc
Palfinger • Rocktec • Sany • Sennebogen • Siemens • Terex • Vahle • Zoomlion

general inDusTry
General Industry generated around 19% of the total revenues for the Group, amounting  
to EUR 10.4 million. Order Intake amounted to EUR 40.3 million. Order Book was  
EUR 8.3 million.Accumulated Revenues

EUR 40,566 thousands

18%

7%

16%
Accumulated Order Intake
EUR 40,313 thousands

Order Book
EUR 8,258 thousands

FY12 Revenues
EUR 44,642 thousands

FY13 Revenues
EUR 40,566 thousands

-9.1%

Radio Remote Controls, Sweden
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Delivering safeTy, proDucTiviTy
gains worlDwiDe

While several segments of the General Industry market unit faced tough market conditions in 2013, the unit was able to 
capitalise on our considerable strengths – in terms of product innovation and sector crossover – to ensure it was a successful 
year for the unit, and one that saw crucial steps taken to secure future growth. Erik Wilhelmsen, Market Unit Manager for 
General Industry outlines how this was achieved. 

strong relationships with key service providers both in the us and 
in europe: we’re talking to all the major players in this segment and 
developing new markets all the time.”

“Towards the end of last year, we were at the electrical vehicle show 
in barcelona (evs27). i’ve never been to such a successful show: 
the number of leads generated and the interest in our products was 
unbelievable. it was extremely good for us, and we’ll certainly be 
attending similar events in the future.“

“The number of leads generated and the interest in our products was 
unbelievable.”

“last year was also a watershed for the unit in human operated 
interfaces (hoi) and the interfaces between man and machine. This is 
an area we expect to grow even further in 2014.” 

“we are currently at the development stage with a number of customers, 
looking at systems that improve safety and operational efficiency at a 
wide variety of applications.”

“for example, we’re looking at ways hoi interfaces can be used on 
fire-fighting vehicles by putting robots on tracks which can then be 
sent into buildings or even aircraft. our systems provide operators with 
radio remote control, as well as live video and audio feeds.”

“in this application, we’re looking at ways jet engines can be used 
to spray water at enormous pressure to turn it into a very fine mist, 
this makes fire fighting very efficient. it’s a fantastic invention, and it 
generated a great deal of interest when the equipment was shown at 
an exhibition in Dubai last December.” 

“we’re also looking at remotely operated vehicles for the steel and 
alloys sectors. we are developing systems that would enable personnel 
to operate forklift trucks at a safe distance from the huge melting ovens 
common to these industries, thus removing humans from dangerous 
environments.”

“an excellent example of this trend was the market for mobile cranes, 
where business was strong for us, despite the market overall being 
weaker,” says wilhelmsen. 

“our mobile crane offering faired exceptionally well in the construction 
market, where we excelled with our range of established products, 
spring operated cable reels and slip rings for example, that have strong 
recognition with our customers old and new,” he adds.

“one area in particular that we intend on expanding our offering is 
supplying complete electro hydraulic systems, including equipment 
and end of line test certificates as a value added service for customers. 
a complete package like this makes life considerably easier for 
customers: it enables them to order from one supplier instead of 
several.”

“another area that was particularly strong for us in 2013, and looks set 
to grow rapidly, is electrical vehicles. This segment has been especially 

strong in the us, were we are expanding our 
production and sales capacity to 

keep up with demand.” 

“we specialise in self-retracting 
cable management systems 

for charging stations 
that make it easier for 
motorists to charge 
their cars. This has 
been very successful 

for us, and we 
have developed 
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IMPROVED OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY; 
REDUCED ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

of total Group revenues

19%

Around the globe, in a wide variety of applications, 
we support our customers increase the efficiency 

with which electrical power, minerals and fluids are 
managed and transported.

Cavotec’s General Industry systems are used in a uniquely diverse variety of applications: 
from theatres and fairgrounds, to steel and aluminum plants, to electrical vehicles, trains, cranes and many more. 

Below, we give you an idea of the breadth of our presence in this segment.

MOBILE CRANES
Tens of thousands of cranes 
worldwide are equipped with 

Cavotec spring and hose reels, 
slip rings and cable chains.

STAGE TECHNOLOGIES

RRC, slip rings, 
connectors, cable reels 

and flexible cables.

TOWER AND OVERHEAD CRANES

WIND TURBINES

ELECTRICAL VEHICLES

Cavotec self-retracting
cable management 

systems make connections 
safe and fast, and keep 

cables tidy. 

Tower and overhead cranes are 
equipped with Cavotec slip rings 
and cable reels, and controlled 

with our RRC. 

Cavotec slip rings enable wind 
turbines to produce power with 
optimal efficiency. Our RRC also 

ensure the safe transport 
of turbine parts. 

iMproveD operaTional efficiency,
reDuceD environMenTal iMpacT
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“alongside innovative products, we continue to widen the differences 
between the unit and our competitors. our rivals simply do not 
have same palate, the same variety of technologies and breadth 
of expertise. because we’re one group, our sales companies and 
centres of excellence are partners.” 

“we have input in manufacturing and design in an entirely 
different way to our competitors. I’ve worked as a rep., and 
I know the difference.” 

“This means that our sales teams draw expertise from our engineers 
at our centres of excellence – and of course vice versa. so we can 
be flexible in our development of solutions with customers; this is 
another major difference that sets us apart from our competitors.”

The general industry unit develops and manufactures systems at 
several of cavotec’s centres of excellence including cavotec alfo, 
cavotec Micro-control, cavotec connectors and cavotec Meyerinck. 
cavotec alfo is a specialist supplier of advanced spring reels and 
slip rings that are used in a wide variety of sectors. cavotec Micro-
control is a market leader in rrc systems for sectors ranging from 
oil and gas, mining and tunnelling, ports and maritime, agriculture 
and forestry. cavotec connectors is an established supplier of power 
supply systems. cavotec Meyerinck manufactures advanced loading 
arm systems for a wide variety of fuelling and food and beverage 
applications. 
 
“The unit is active in 15 different industry sectors – that’s an 
extraordinarily broad offering.” 

“cavotec’s ports & Maritime unit has used products developed and 
supplied by the airports unit for some time. now we’re bringing our 
innovations in the airports sector to general industry. in one example 
of this sector crossover, we’re manufacturing pits with electrical 
equipment, compressed air and water supply for train maintenance. 
This is an area that is growing in norway and elsewhere in europe, 
and we’re looking at taking these sort of solutions worldwide.”

“It’s only imagination that can stop us from taking our 
technologies to completely new areas – the possibilities 
are endless.”

“looking ahead to next year and beyond, we see electrical vehicles 
developing further in the us. There’s huge potential there for our 
cable management systems that improve safety, cut charge times 
and reduce maintenance costs for users.”

“we anticipate continued growth in hoi systems, with various 
applications further fuelling growth in several markets.”

“finally, i’d say that it’s only our imagination that can stop us from 
applying our technologies to completely new areas. The possibilities 
are endless.”

iMproveD operaTional efficiency,
reDuceD environMenTal iMpacT



28

corporaTe social responsibiliTy 
reporT – being a responsible 
global ciTiZen  
As a global organisation, with diverse groups of customers, suppliers, employees and investors associated with it, Cavotec 
ensures corporate social responsibility (CSR) lies at the heart of its operations. 

organisation we are also very much aware of the need to reduce our 
own environmental impact.

a number of our business units have achieved iso classification, 
and those that have not, are taking steps to do so by, wherever 
possible, reducing waste, optimising recycling of materials and using 
environmentally friendly processes.
    
we believe that our responsibility as a manufacturer extends beyond 
our own operations, however. we emphasise sound business ethics 
in all our transactions and relationships with suppliers, to ensure that 
components for our systems are produced, tested and shipped safely 
and sustainably. all our business units are required to ensure that 
suppliers conform to the highest standards regarding employee health 
and safety, the environment and social responsibility.

wherever possible, we ensure that we ship materials in ways that limit 
co2 emissions. and while we value meeting our customers face-to-
face to maintain and develop relationships, we also ensure that we 
maximise our use of conference calling facilities whenever possible, 
thereby limiting air travel.

Active community involvement
cavotec is often an active member of the local communities where 
it is present. The group is currently involved in charity initiatives, 

firstly, our products deliver environmental benefits to a wide variety of 
applications and industrial sectors all over the world. from enabling 
the use of electrically powered machinery at airports and mining 
applications, to expanding the use of automated technologies in ports 
and a wide variety of industrial segments, cavotec is ensuring that the 
world around us functions more sustainably and more efficiently. 

secondly, as an organisation, we seek to minimise our own 
environmental impact, act responsibly as an employer and contribute 
to community projects and charitable institutions. 

The cavotec group as a whole recognises that these endeavours are 
key responsibilities of a growing, multinational organisation. we have 
outlined our progress in csr issues in previous annual reports for 
several years now. This, however, is the most comprehensive such 
report we have compiled to date. it is divided into two sections.

firstly, it provides a brief overview of how our technologies are driving 
improvements in sustainability and environmental stewardship; and 
secondly, it illustrates how cavotec itself is reducing environmental 
impact, ensuring that it is a responsible employer, and contributing to 
charity initiatives. 

Steps taken in-house, and beyond
while we enable our customers to operate more sustainably, as an 
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machinery and manufacturing equipment. 

cavotec is proud of its involvement in these two projects, and other 
similar initiatives, but at the same time, sees them as a natural and 
necessary element of its growing presence as a responsible, global 
citizen.  

Powering a more sustainable world 
whether it’s state-of-the-art tunnelling equipment in stockholm and 
hong Kong, or cooling aircraft in Dubai or heating them in norway, 
or automating the mooring of ships at bulk handling ports in western 
australia, cavotec technological know-how plays a variety of critical 
roles in ensuring that our customers achieve their own environmental 
performance targets, as well as conform to national and international 
requirements for reducing emissions of greenhouse gases and other 
pollutants, recycling and energy consumption. The result: a cleaner, more 
efficient global economy.

we work proactively, and on a continuous basis with customers, industry 
bodies and government agencies, to develop innovative power control 
and distribution systems that minimise environmental impact. 

Powering up for a cleaner future
switching from diesel-driven to electrically powered equipment helps 
our customers reduce environmental impact. in many cases, a move 

community projects and sports events all over the world. local cavotec 
companies are required to follow specific guidelines when conducting 
such initiatives. These include not being permitted to provide support 
for political or religious organisations. here, we take a look at two 
recent examples. 

cavotec sponsors the work of an orphanage in shanghai called will, 
which stands for “walk into life and learn.” will has the goal of being 
a sustainable and self-sufficient eco-learning centre for disadvantaged 
children. The centre provides support for orphaned children, teaching 
them skills intended to help them fulfil their potential. among other 
activities, staff at the centre instruct children how to build and maintain 
an organic garden to provide food for themselves and others. 
 
orchestra dei Popoli
cavotec also supports the work of the orchestra dei popoli in Milan. 
The orchestra was founded in 2011 and actively supports initiatives 
that improve social inclusion, especially among roma children living in 
Milan. some of the original members of the orchestra are children and 
young people drawn from the city’s roma community.

in 2013, to mark the 50th anniversary of the founding of the 
specimas engineering company – now cavotec specimas and 
one of our centres of excellence – the orchestra held a special 
performance at cavotec specimas, against the unusual backdrop of 
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our rrc systems also have a growing role in mitigating environmental 
damage. for example, a particular growth area in recent years has 
been specially adapted systems that support the dispersal of oil during 
clean-up operations. 

The importance of communication
communication is a critical element in an organisation – whatever its 
size. cavotec is transparent in its communications with the market, 
fulfilling all legal requirements, and in other spheres such as social 
media and internal communication. 

for a b2b engineering company, cavotec has a strong and active 
presence on social media. The group runs accounts on facebook, 
Twitter, youTube, linkedin and MynewsDesk, and it also posts regular 
updates on its blog. people outside the group are the primary users 
of these platforms, although cavotec employees are also frequent 
contributors on these sites. 

in common with all other areas of interaction pertaining to the group 
– external and internal – employees are expected to uphold certain 
levels of ethical behaviour. similarly, employees are required to behave 
in a proper manner on social networks unrelated to cavotec.  
 
A global effort with global impact
Taken together, the increasingly widespread application of our systems 
and innovative technologies, as well as our own internal efforts, are 
helping to ensure that the global economy and international society 
functions more sustainably and more efficiently.

we do not however view csr as an area with a fixed end-point. we 
are continuing to strive to improve our performance in this area, both 
outside the group, and inside.

away from diesel machinery also generates reductions in operating 
costs, for example, fuel costs and maintenance, and therefore 
improvements in profitability.

our systems for ports and terminals, such as alternative Maritime 
power, motorised cable reels and panzerbelt systems for container 
cranes, are reducing emissions and thereby improving air quality at 
these applications, and in surrounding communities.

Inspired engineering takes flight
at airports, cavotec has pioneered pre-conditioned air (pcair) systems 
that enable pilots to switch off aircraft auxiliary power units (apus) when 
at the gate, or parked at remote aprons. apus use between 200 and 
600 litres of fuel per hour, so shutting them off produces considerable 
reductions in emission levels and substantial fuel cost savings.

in the Mining & Tunnelling sector, our systems are ensuring that 
growing numbers of applications use electrically operated systems that 
reduce the amount of harmful emissions that would have previously 
been the case had diesel powered equipment been used. 

and in the general industry segment, cavotec is working closely with 
several manufacturers of electrical vehicle charging systems. This is 
an area where we are seeing substantial growth, particularly in north 
american and european markets. 

outstanding safety as standard
being a responsible global citizen is not purely about caring for 
ecological diversity. it’s about ensuring your personnel are safe 
from harm, particularly in the harshest, most demanding of working 
environments. our rrc systems are creating safer working conditions 
for personnel at demanding applications all over the world. by 
removing staff from dangerous on-site tasks, and providing full control 
and monitoring capabilities, we are providing our customers with the 
opportunity to ensure their workers are safe and enjoy improved 
working environments. 
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Employees 
by Category (2013)
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huMan
resources

deployment. The goal is to think as the global group that we are, and 
to act locally, taking into consideration our diversity and specific needs 
in given markets and locations.

The continued development of the support function at corporate level 
is an important leverage point providing increased scope and visibility 
to our local companies through the implementation of support tools 
and structured processes.

in this continuous improvement perspective, we plan to work on new 
hr projects in 2014 with a “glocal” approach: empowering the group 
identity with global projects, and supporting our local companies to 
meet their distinctive needs.

number of employees (end of period)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Total 718 677 719 890 866* 916*

*Headcount: internal payroll not full time equivalent. Please note that Cavotec 
employed 1,001 FTE employees, including external employees, in 2013.

cavotec offers challenging and rewarding careers in a fast-moving, 
diversified and global business. we hire exceptional, motivated 
individuals and invest in their future, building a culture of continuous 
learning through education and training.

Management continually works to develop employees’ integrity, and 
create an environment where our people are proud to do business 
with transparency and professionalism around the world on our behalf. 
we actively ensure employees’ health and wellbeing by creating an 
inspirational work environment, and by encouraging a healthy balance 
between work and private life.

cavotec is flexible and dynamic, yet never abandons its responsibilities 
and commitments. our open working environment fosters the free 
exchange of ideas and mutual respect.

‘Glocal: Think Global, Act local’
following the structuring of cavotec corporate hr in early 2013, 
the focus was on both implementing global, strategic projects and 
on supporting local, tactical needs. one of the many ways the group 
has invested in hr is through structured projects that provide greater 
clarity to the board and management about the global headcount, 
recruitment needs and workforce’s need for training programmes and 
competence development plans. our initiative to map key positions 
both in business and support functions has substantially improved 
the visibility of opportunities in the organisation, and our ability to 
match career paths with the aspirations of employees in line with the 
operational needs and expectations of the group.

for these reasons, during 2013, we implemented recruitment 
and reporting processes to obtain a global view and support local 

Talent recruiting

Talent management

Building effective  
organisation

Compensation & Benefits

learning  
organisation

Think

Global local

Glocal

Act
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Employees by job family and Gender (2013)
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CAVoTEC’S DEMoGRAPhICS
The composition of the cavotec team reflects the group’s international, 
multicultural and interdisciplinary character. at the end of 2013, 
cavotec employed 916 people (not full time equivalent and internally 
paid). More than 95% of our staff are permanently employed. They 
come from more than 40 countries on five continents, and from a 
wide variety of backgrounds. The majority are employed locally, with 
around 15% being engineers. almost one third of our employees 
have a university-level degree or higher.

although there is still only a small number of women in executive 
roles within cavotec, around 18% of its people is made up of 
women in support functions. cavotec has a clear and long-stated 
policy underlining its approach to hiring the best possible talent and 
embracing diversity. over the past three years the group has grown 
approximately 30% to meet the growing needs of the business and 
market in general.

cavotec employees have a low average age, with more than 47% of 
employees under 40. where possible, the group seeks to ensure that 
younger members of staff benefit from more experienced employees’ 
knowledge of the industry and history of the cavotec group.

The average seniority in cavotec group is seven years and around 40% 
of employees started to work at the group less than two years ago.

MUTUAl RESPECT In An InTERnATIonAl TEAM
as a relatively small organisation, with a global presence, it is important 
that cavotec has a strong, shared company culture. This helps to 
align business goals, and creates a common vision for employees 
wherever they are based. each cavotec employee brings to the group 
a diverse range of skill sets and individual characteristics that are 
valued and recognised by fellow colleagues, partners and customers. 
all employees are respected and encouraged to contribute to the 
group’s overall success.

loCAl PRESEnCE
generally, staff are employed locally enabling cavotec to build 
long-term relationships with customers, suppliers, authorities and 
professional bodies. The group is committed to being close to its 
customers, all over the world, and to live up to our goal of being 
“glocal”.

our local strength enables cavotec to work closely with its customers, 
gain a better understanding of their requirements and solve challenges 
they face more effectively. for partners and suppliers, the local 
presence and familiarity with local markets make cavotec a valuable 
and intrinsically competent business partner. Knowledge of local 
realities on global issues makes the group relevant for formulating 
regulatory norms and technical standards.

as a multinational group, it is of the utmost importance that 
cavotec staff conducts their work with sensitivity and exemplary 
ethical behaviour at all times. all our employees are issued with the 
cavotec code of conduct that provides detailed guidelines on ethical 
standards, cultural differences and business practices.
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name Position year of birth Member since(1) nationality Residence

fabio cannavale Member 1965 2010 italian switzerland

leena essén Member 1952 2010 swedish sweden

nicola gerber Member 1977 2010 german new Zealand

christer granskog Member 1947 2008 finnish finland

lakshmi Khanna Member 1941 2007 italian italy

erik lautmann Member 1950 2007 swedish sweden

ottonel popesco Member and ceo 1957 2007 french switzerland

stefan widegren chairman 1950 2007 swedish switzerland

(1) Please note that the year refers to membership in the Board of Directors of Cavotec MSL 

boarD 
of DirecTors
The Cavotec Board consists of nine members. All Board members have extensive experience in global business and between 
them represent a broad variety of skill sets and backgrounds. We believe that strong leadership takes empathy, insight and 
a willingness to listen. All these characteristics personify our Board and Corporate Management’s approach to ensuring the 
Cavotec Group continues to flourish.

From left to right: Fabio Cannavale, Christer Granskog, Lakshmi Khanna, Ottonel Popesco, Stefan Widegren, Leena Essén, Erik Lautmann.  
Not shown in photograph: Nicola Gerber.
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fABIo CAnnAVAlE
Member of the board. fabio holds a Msc in engineering from politechnic university and an Mba from inseaD. he has served
as a strategy consultant at McKinsey & co and aT Kearney. he is executive chairman of bravofly group and member of the 
board of Directors of nomina sa, consortium real estate bv.

in the past five years, fabio cannavale has been, but is no longer a board member of roam, pies and Mont spa.

fabio cannavale holds 6,948,046 shares in cavotec (through nomina sa, in which fabio, together with related parties, hold
100 per cent of the shares).

lEEnA ESSén
Member of the board. leena holds a bsc in economics and business from the stockholm school of economics. following her 
studies and prior to joining cavotec in 1990, leena worked as cfo for several swedish companies, most notably gylling ab and 
pa consulting group. she has been with cavotec for nearly 20 years, first as group financial Director until 2005 and then as 
group controller overseeing the implementation of new financial reporting systems and creating a transparent and accurate financial 
structure for the group. leena is still employed by the cavotec group but in a non-executive position.
 
leena essén holds 558,686 shares in cavotec personally, 1,622,921 shares through anelea holdings ltd. (of which leena holds 
10 per cent of the shares) and 177,100 shares through anelea sverige ab (a wholly-owned subsidiary of anelea holdings ltd.).

nIColA GERBER
Member of the board. nicola holds a ba (hons) in business Management from university of westminster. she is a regional 
Director for strategy and business development in the iT sector and is currently working for cisco systems ltd. prior to her role 
with cisco nicola held sales executive roles at start-ups in eMea, most notably with fineground networks, which was acquired 
by cisco in 2005. nicola has specialised in business development & strategy across european markets and since 2008 across 
asia pacific markets based in new Zealand. 

nicola gerber does not hold any shares or warrants in cavotec.

ChRISTER GRAnSkoG
Member of the board. christer holds an Msc in industrial Management and information systems from helsinki university of
Technology. christer is former president and ceo of Kalmar industries (1998–2007). he has also worked as senior executive
vice president of partek corporation and president of partek cargotek ab (1997–1998), president and ceo of sisu corporation
(1994–1997) and president and ceo of valmet automation oy (1990–1994). he currently serves as chairman and ceo of oy
piceum ab, of patria oyj and lännen Tractors oy while also serving as Deputy chairman of vr group oy. he is also a member of
the board of Directors of sarlin oy, a senior industrial adviser for eQT partners and a member of the academy of Technical 
sciences in finland.

in the past five years, christer granskog has been, but is no longer, Deputy chairman of the board of Directors of rautaruukki
oyi and a member of the board of Directors of Kalmar industries ab.

christer granskog holds 20,000 shares in cavotec (through his wholly-owned holding company oy piceum ab).
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oTTonEl PoPESCo
Member of the board & ceo. ottonel holds an Msc in economics from bucharest academy, an Mba from sorbonne 
university, an ingénieur professionnel de france-diploma from societé nationale des ingenieurs professionnels de france and 
a strategic Marketing Management-diploma from harvard business school. prior to joining cavotec in 1988, ottonel spent 
five years as sales and Marketing manager at abb france (cKb Manufacturing Division). he is board member of bravofly 
group switzerland and chairman of the port equipment Manufacturers association (peMa) belgium. Moreover, ottonel 
is a registered professional engineer in france and an associate member of the engineering committee of the american 
association of port authorities, usa.

ottonel popesco, together with related parties, holds 2,438,408 shares in cavotec.

STEfAn wIDEGREn
chairman and member of the board. stefan studied mechanical engineering, specialising in hydraulics and pneumatics, at
the royal institute of Technology in stockholm from 1970 to 1975. he joined specimas srl (italy) in 1972 and co-founded
cavotec ab two years later, assuming the role of managing director. cavotec acquired specimas in 1984 and stefan
was appointed chairman and ceo of the cavotec group in 1994. he was appointed executive chairman of cavotec Msl in
2007 and chairman of cavotec sa in 2011. stefan is sweden’s honorary consul in Ticino, switzerland, a board member of the
swedish chamber of commerce in Zurich, switzerland, and a member of the rotary club lugano lago. stefan has also 
served as chairman of the union of international chambers of commerce in italy and as chairman of the swedish chamber of 
commerce in Milan.

stefan widegren, together with related parties, holds 7,254,264 shares in cavotec.

ERIk lAUTMAnn
Member of the board. after obtaining a bsc from the stockholm school of economics, erik’s professional career has primarily
been in logistics and consulting. he has served as managing director of Dhl in northern europe, as managing director of Jetpak
group, and was managing director of catella when the company was founded in 1987.

since 2007, erik has been at cavotec as a non-executive board Director and industrial advisor. in addition, he chairs five private
equity and privately owned businesses. 

erik is a fellow of the royal swedish academy of engineering sciences (iva), chairman of the board of iva ’s business 
executives council, and sits on the iva board.

erik lautmann holds 97,802 shares in cavotec.

lAkShMI C. khAnnA 
lakshmi holds a ba in Mathematics from punjab university. he is a chartered accountant and is a Member (fca) of the institute of 
chartered accountants in england and wales. lakshmi is respectively a member of the non-executive Directors special interest group, 
a member of the valuations special interest group and a member of the financial reporting faculty of this institute. he is also an 
associate Member (aca) of the institute of chartered accountants of india. 

lakshmi worked at price waterhouse & subsequently at pricewaterhousecoopers (pwc) in italy, from 1966 to his retirement, as a 
partner, in 2001. During his distinguished career, he was responsible for client services for the italian operations of multinational groups 
such as exxon, general foods, ibM, ingersoll rand, Trust houses forte and united Technologies amongst others. lakshmi has also 
chaired price waterhouse Management consultants in italy. 

lakshmi has been president of the rotary club of Milan sud est, and president of the world community service commission of rotary 
(lombardy). he has also been an advisor to the Joint Task force confederation of italian industry, and the confederation of indian 
industry. he is president of the board of statutory auditors of progetti industriali spa, Milan.

lakshmi conducts limited consulting services for the group.

lakshmi Khanna holds 263,406 shares in cavotec.
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The Cavotec Executive Management Committee (EMC) consists of thirteen senior executive officers nominated by the CEO. 
The primary role of the EMC is to advise, support and assist the execution of the Board’s strategic management decisions. 

eXecuTive ManageMenT
coMMiTTee 

name Position year of birth

christian bernadotte regional Manager, americas 1949

ester cadau group human resources Director 1975

erik chilò Managing Director, cavotec sverige ab & regional Manager, north europe 1958

luciano corbetta group Market unit Manager, ports & Maritime 1969

yann Duclot group Manager, sales & Marketing 1975

Diego fiorentini group cfo 1972

giorgio lingiardi group vp & cio / regional Manager, southern europe & africa 1958

gary Matthews Managing Director, cavotec uK 1966

gustavo Miller Managing Director, cavotec china / regional Manager, far east 1964

patrick rosenwald Managing Director, cavotec specimas / Managing Director, cavotec MoorMaster 1970

Michael scheepers Director, investor relations & corporate communications 1978

Juergen strommer Managing Director, cavotec Middle east / regional Manager, Middle east & india 1970

Michael widegren group vp, patents & Trademarks / regional Manager, central europe 1955

From left to right: Michael Scheepers, Luciano Corbetta, Michael Widegren, Gary Matthews, Juergen Strommer, Ottonel Popesco, Erik Chilò, Giorgio Lingiardi, Diego Fiorentini, 
Ester Cadau, Patrick Rosenwald, Christian Bernadotte, Yann Duclot, Gustavo Miller.
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ChRISTIAn BERnADoTTE
regional Manager, americas. christian holds a bsc in electrical engineering and an Mba. he is a member of the board of Directors 
of aria analytics and swedish-american chamber of commerce, ohio, and is also the chairman of the board of cavotec Dabico, 
cavotec usa and cavotec ineT.

christian bernadotte holds 44,438 shares in cavotec.

ESTER CADAU
group human resources Director. ester holds a business administration degree and a Master in human resources 
Management from the institut superieur de gestion (isg) in paris plus a political sciences degree from the university of cagliari. 
before joining cavotec, ester was an international human resources Manager in different public listed companies like ingenico, 
legris industries groupe, venteprivee.com and hr project Manager at air france.

ester cadau holds 3,000 shares in cavotec.



41

ERIk ChIlò
Managing Director, cavotec sverige ab & regional Manager, north europe. erik holds a Msc in industrial engineering from 
linköping institute of Technology. he has served in different positions in automation, telecommunications, intermodal transport 
and bulk handling.

erik chilò holds 44,585 shares in cavotec.

GIoRGIo lInGIARDI
group vp & cio and regional Manager, southern europe & africa. giorgio holds a Msc in Mechanical engineering from 
university of genoa italy.

giorgio lingiardi holds 26,727 shares in cavotec.

yAnn DUCloT
group Manager, sales & Marketing. yann holds a degree in business administration from the ecole superieure de commerce de
grenoble, france. before joining cavotec in 2007, where he has served as Middle east aviation Division Manager until 2010, 
yann was a business Development and Key account Manager at nexans, france and european Market Manager at alcatel france.

yann Duclot holds 10,262 shares in cavotec.

lUCIAno CoRBETTA
group Market unit Manager, ports & Maritime. luciano holds a Msc in Mechanical engineering from politecnico di Milano. 
he has served as Mechanical engineer at TTr srl and as export sales Manager at brevetti stendalto spa. 

luciano corbetta holds 17,560 shares in cavotec.

DIEGo fIoREnTInI
group cfo. Diego holds a degree in business administration from università commerciale l.bocconi. before joining cavotec, 
Diego was a finance manager and corporate treasurer at italmobiliare group, prior to which he was the head of back/middle 
office and an accountant at abb.

Diego fiorentini holds 13,454 shares in cavotec.
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GUSTAVo MIllER
Managing Director, cavotec china & regional Manager, far east. gustavo is a Mechanical engineer from catholic university of 
cordoba, argentina. he has served as a Managing Director at impsa Malaysia and as a general Manager Tower cranes Division 
at lindores group (australia).

gustavo Miller holds 13,077 shares in cavotec.

PATRICk RoSEnwAlD 
Managing Director, cavotec specimas spa & Managing Director, cavotec MoorMaster ltd. patrick holds a be in engineering 
(Mechanical) and a graduate Diploma in business from curtin university, western australia. 

patrick rosenwald holds 52,091 shares in cavotec.

GARy MATThEwS
Managing Director, cavotec uK. gary holds an hnc in Mechanical engineering and an Mba from university of Teesside. he has 
served as a Managing Director in Dabico europe.

gary Matthews holds 19,578 shares in cavotec.

From left to right:
Stan tomsic, executive Director, porttechlA; ottonel popesco; 
eric Garcetti, Mayor of los Angeles.
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MIChAEl SChEEPERS 
Director, investor relations & corporate communications. Michael studied corporate communications & public relations at 
fonTys university for applied sciences in the netherlands. after his studies he joined cavotec in 2002, where he has since 
held several positions, including communications Manager and group Manager, corporate communications. he is a member of 
the investor relations society in the united Kingdom, and a member of the european association of communication Directors.

Michael scheepers holds 35,155 shares in cavotec.

jUERGEn STRoMMER
Managing Director, cavotec Middle east fZe & regional Manager, Middle east & india. Juergen holds a degree in Mechanical 
engineering from May eyth Th, Kirchheim/Teck and a degree in business Management from garp stuttgart. he has served at 
ThyssenKrupp as a Director in the Middle east for eight years among other positions, and has been a general Manager with the 
al futtaim group.

Juergen strommer holds 27,578 shares in cavotec.

MIChAEl wIDEGREn
group vp & regional Manager for central europe including cis. Michael studied Mechanical engineering, indek at KTh in 
stockholm. he started at cavotec sweden in 1985 and in 1988 started specimas inc. in Toronto, canada, where he was 
responsible for the north american market. in 1990, Michael returned to cavotec sweden, where he became MD five years 
later. 

in 1998 he assumed responsibility as MD of cavotec germany and cavotec alfo where he took the first steps towards 
developing the airports Market unit, becoming MD of the newly acquired cavotec fladung in 2004. in 2007 he moved to 
lugano, switzerland to assume his current role.

Michael widegren, together with related parties, holds 1,045,625 shares in cavotec.
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corporaTe
governance
since cavotec is a swiss company listed on the nasDaQ oMX in 
stockholm, the corporate governance of cavotec is based on swiss 
and swedish rules and regulations, such as the swiss code of 
obligations (the “co”) and the swedish code of corporate governance 
(sw. Svensk kod för bolagsstyrning) (the “code”). 

ThE SwEDISh CoDE of CoRPoRATE GoVERnAnCE
The code applies to all swedish companies with shares listed on a 
regulated market in sweden and shall be fully applied at the first annual 
shareholders’ meeting held during the year following market listing. 
The company, although being a swiss company, has decided to apply 
the code, but need not obey all rules in the code but has options for 
selecting alternative solutions which it may deem to better suit to its 
circumstances provided that any non-compliances and the alternative 
solution are described and the reasons explained in the corporate 
governance report.

The company has applied the code from the time the shares have 
been listed on nasDaQ oMX stockholm. however, since it is a swiss 
company subject to swiss rules and regulations there are some 
deviations from the code. Deviations that the company is already 
aware of have as far as possible be explained in the prospectus or 
otherwise in the company’s corporate governance report, which has 
been drawn up for the first time for the 2011 financial year.

ShAREholDERS’ MEETInGS 
General
The shareholders’ rights to resolve on company matters are exercised 
at the shareholders’ meeting. an ordinary shareholders’ meeting is to 
be held yearly within six months following the close of the business 
year. it is called by the board of Directors or, if necessary, by the 
auditors. extraordinary shareholders’ meetings may be called by the 
board of Directors, the liquidators or the auditors as often as necessary 
to safeguard the interests of the company. shareholders’ meetings 
are held at the domicile of the company or at such other place as 
the board of Directors shall determine. since the company is listed 
in stockholm, the board of Directors has the ambition to as far as 
possible and as long as in compliance with swiss rules and regulations 
and if no public deed issued by a swiss notary is needed, to hold 
shareholders’ meetings in sweden. The shareholders’ meetings, 
deviating from the code, will be held in english and information and 
material will be available in english only. This is in accordance with 
an exemption granted by the swedish financial supervisory authority. 
The minutes from shareholders’ meetings will be published on the 
company’s website.

Right to attend shareholders’ meetings
all shareholders who are registered directly in euroclear sweden’s and 
siX switzerland’s share registers on april 14, 2014 and who notify the 
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code of conduct

internal regulations
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company of their intention to attend the shareholders’ meeting at the 
latest by the date specified in the convening letter shall be entitled to 
attend the shareholders’ meeting and vote according to the number 
of shares they hold. shareholders may attend shareholders’ meetings 
in person or through a proxy. shareholders may usually register for 
shareholders’ meetings in several different ways, which are described 
in the meeting convening letter.

notice of shareholders’ meetings and shareholder initiatives
notice of a shareholders’ meeting is given by means of a publication 
in the swiss commercial gazette or by letter to the shareholders of 
record as well as through a press release. between the day of the 
publication or the mailing of the notice and the day of the meeting 
there must be a time period of not less than 20 calendar days. The 
notice of the shareholders’ meeting must indicate the agenda and the 
motions. The notice will also be published on the company’s website. 

stating the purpose of the meeting and the agenda to be submitted, 
one or more shareholders representing at least ten per cent of the 
share capital may request the board of Directors, in writing to call 
an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting. in such case, the board of 
Directors must call a shareholders’ meeting within two weeks.

nomination Process
The process for the nomination of board members for cavotec has 
been revised in 2011 in relation to the move from the nZX in new 
Zealand to nasDaQ oMX stockholm in sweden. The objective 
has been to apply the swedish corporate governance code, while 
still respecting the swiss laws and regulations applicable to a 
swiss company. The ultimate goal has been to adopt a nomination 

process that is open and transparent to all shareholders and 
stakeholders.

The present nomination committee was appointed on april 23, 2013 
in accordance to the articles of association of the company. please 
note, that while the nomination committee in a swiss company is 
appointed by the board of Directors, the composition of the cavotec 
nomination committee will follow the recommendations of the swedish 
corporate governance code. 

The nomination committee proposes that the board of Directors shall 
comprise of eight members. The appointed nomination committee 
members are:

lars hellman, chairman of the committee and founder shareholder
peter brandel, founder shareholder
stefan widegren, chairman of cavotec sa and founder shareholder

The members of the nomination committee represent some 25% of all 
votes in the company. a way of contact with the nomination committee 
has been establish through the company website www.cavotec.com.

in December 2013 the committee began preparing a proposal 
for the board of Directors to be submitted to the ordinary general 
Meeting. since an evaluation of the work performed by the board was 
completed in february 2014, a new evaluation is scheduled for 2015.

on December 5th, 2013 the nomination committee met in huntington 
beach, ca, usa in order to discuss various proposals with major 
shareholders (representing more than 45% of the votes) and among 
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other topics also discussed the proposals for the future composition of 
the board of Directors. 

after having received the support and approval by the board on March 
18th, 2014 for its final proposal the nomination committee defined its 
final proposal as follows:

according to art.13 of the current articles of association, as well as 
according to art.3 of the federal ordinance on excessive compensation, 
the directors are elected each year to hold office until the following 
annual shareholders’ meeting. Directors may be re-elected.

it is proposed the ordinary general Meeting in lugano to be chaired by 
lakshmi c. Khanna, while stefan widegren will preside the information 
Meeting in stockholm.

fabio cannavale, leena essén, nicola gerber, christer granskog, 
lakshmi c. Khanna, erik lautmann, ottonel popesco and stefan 
widegren will stand for re-election.

The nomination committee proposes that fabio cannavale, leena 
essén, nicola gerber, christer granskog, lakshmi c. Khanna, erik 
lautmann, ottonel popesco and stefan widegren be re-elected as 

Directors for a further one-year term of office expiring at our ordinary 
general meeting to be held in 2015.

The nomination committee furthermore proposes to elect stefan 
widegren as chairman of the board of Directors.

with respect to the requirements in the swedish corporate governance 
code (the code) that a majority of the directors elected by the 
shareholders’ meeting are to be independent of the company and its 
executive management and that at least two of this majority also are 
to be independent in relation to the company’s major shareholders, 
the nomination committee has carried out the following assessment:

christer granskog, lakshmi Khanna, erik lautmann, nicola gerber and 
fabio cannavale are all independent of the company and its executive 
management.

christer granskog, lakshmi Khanna, erik lautmann and nicola 
gerber are all also independent in relation to the company’s major 
shareholders.

The nomination committee therefore concludes that all requirements 
of director independence as set out in the code are met.
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Board and Committee meetings in Cavotec SA in 2013

finally, the nomination committee proposes that pricewaterhouse-
coopers sa, lugano, switzerland be re-elected as cavotec’s 
independent auditor for business year 2014. 

shareholders representing more than 45% of the votes support the 
above mentioned proposals made by the nomination committee.

in the notice of Meeting for the ordinary general Meeting 2014, the 
committee will present its proposal regarding number of board members, 
names of the proposed board members, and the chair of the board.  

External auditor
at the ordinary general Meeting 2014 the nomination committee will
also propose to appoint pricewaterhousecoopers sa, lugano, as 
the independent auditor of the company until the ordinary general 
Meeting 2015. Daniel Ketterer is the auditor in charge. he took over 
this function for the business year 2011.
 
ThE BoARD of DIRECToRS
The composition of the board of Directors is set out in section 
“board of Directors” in the cavotec annual report and the members 
of the board are elected for the period until the end of the next 
ordinary meeting of shareholders. The board of Directors constitutes 
itself, but the chairman of the board of Directors is elected by the 
shareholders’ meeting as set out in the articles of association.

The members of the nomination committee and the audit committee, 
as well as the respective chairmen, are elected from and by the board 
members. The board of Directors has a company secretary that has 
the duties and competencies set out by swiss law. furthermore, the 
secretary assists the board, the chairman and the committees, to 

co-ordinate and fulfill their duties and assignments in accordance 
with the board of Directors internal regulations (comparable to rules 
of procedures and adopted by the board of Directors).

The board of Directors is entrusted with the ultimate management 
of the company, as well as with the supervision and control of the 
management. The board of Directors is the ultimate executive body 
of the company and shall determine the principles of the business 
strategy and policies. 

The board of Directors shall exercise its function as required by 
law, the articles of association and the board of Directors’ internal 
regulations. The board shall be authorised to pass resolutions on all 
matters that are not reserved to the general meeting of shareholders 
or to other executive bodies by applicable law, the articles of 
association or the internal regulations.

by swiss law, the board of Directors has the following non-
transferable and inalienable duties:

a) The determination of the strategy of the company and the group 
and the issuance of the necessary directives;

b) The establishment of a framework of the organisation;
c) The basic structuring of the accounting system, of a system of 

internal financial controls, and of the financial planning;
d) The approval of the appointment (and suspension) of the officers 

entrusted with the management of the company or with its 
representation;

e) The supervision of management, in particular in relation to 
compliance with the law, the articles and corporate regulations, 
charters and directives;

Board Audit Remuneration nomination
held Attended held Attended held Attended held Attended

fabio cannavale 9 9
peter brandel 3 2
leena essén 9 9 8 8
nicola gerber 9 9
christer granskog 9 9 8 8 3 3
Jack groesbeek(1) 3 2
lars hellman 3 3
lakshmi Khanna 9 9 8 8 3 3
erik lautmann 9 9 3 3
Joe pope(2) 9 3 8 3 3 1
ottonel popesco 9 9
stefan widegren 9 9 3 3
(1) Resigned April 2013
(2) Joe Pope did not stand for re-election at the 2013 AGM
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f) Decisions on the business report consisting of the annual financial 
statements, the annual report, and consolidated financial statements 
including interim published reports and determination of the 
accounting standard;

g) The preparation of the general meeting of shareholders of the 
company and the implementation of its resolutions;

h) notification to the judge in case of a capital loss (“unterbilanz”) of 
the company and in case of over indebtedness (“Überschuldung”; 
art. 725-725a co).

i) (as of business year 2014) preparation of the remuneration report.

by swiss law, the board of Directors also has the following non-
transferable competencies: Decisions in connection with capital increases 
pursuant to art. 651a, 652g, 653g co (acknowledgement of capital 
increase) and art. 651 iv co (increase of share capital in the case of 
authorised capital); decisions pursuant to art. 634a i co (shares not fully 
paid in) and resolutions pursuant to the swiss Merger act.

The board of Directors held nine board meetings as cavotec sa in 
2013.

BoARD CoMMITTEES
The board of Directors currently has three board committees, the 
nomination committee, the audit committee and the remuneration 
committee and the composition and tasks of the committees are 
regulated in the board of Directors’ internal regulations. below is a brief 
description of the committees as per the current internal regulations 
(which are continuously reviewed and if deemed appropriate by the 
board of Directors amended).

nomination Committee
The nomination committee shall be a committee established by the board 
of Directors of the company. This is in line with swiss law but will constitute 

a deviation from the code that prescribes that the nomination committee 
shall be determined by the shareholders. To follow the rules that apply 
to swiss companies the board of Directors has decided that nomination 
committee shall be established by the board of Directors. The composition 
of the nomination committee shall however be in line with the code.

The nomination committee shall ensure that the company has a 
formal and transparent method for the nomination and appointment 
of board members. The objectives of the nomination committee are 
to regularly review and, when appropriate, recommend changes to the 
composition of the board of Directors to ensure that the company has, 
and maintains, the right composition of board members to effectively 
govern and provide guidance to business, and identify and recommend 
to the board of Directors individuals for nomination as members of 
the board and its committees (taking into account such factors as it 
deems appropriate, including experience, qualifications, judgment and 
the ability to work with other board members).

The current members of the nomination committee in cavotec sa are 
peter brandel, lars hellman and stefan widegren. The nomination 
committee has met three times in 2013. at the date of this annual 
report the nomination committee of cavotec sa has met once in 
2014.

Audit Committee
The objective of the audit committee is to assist the board of 
Directors in discharging its responsibilities relative to financial reporting 
and regulatory compliance. Members of the audit committee shall 
exclusively comprise of members of the board appointed by the latter 
in accordance with the code. The audit committee will comprise of not 
less than three members with a majority to be independent Directors 
of the board. one member must have a financial or accounting 
background.

 Board of Directors
 EUR

 Board fees  Short-term employee 
benefits 

 Post-employment 
benefits 

 Consultancy  Total

 fabio cannavale 30,000 1,018 1,594 - 32,612
 leena essén(1) 35,000 111,358 10,183 - 156,542
 nicola gerber 30,000 1,020 1,596 - 32,615
 christer granskog 40,000 605 1,401 - 42,006
 lakshmi Khanna(2) 44,500 553 1,282 77,540 123,875
 erik lautmann 38,800 1,319 2,064 - 42,182
 Joe pope(3) 20,000 303 701 - 21,004
 ottonel popesco(1)(4) 
 (chief executive officer) -   717,877 24,928

                        
 -   742,805

 stefan widegren(1)(5) (chairman) 115,000 339,987 - 167,335 622,322
 Total remuneration 353,300 1,174,040 43,749 244,875 1,815,965
(1) Their compensation includes variable remuneration relative 2012 paid in 2013.
(2) Lakshmi Khanna has provided consulting services to Cavotec International totalling EUR 78 thousands.
(3) Joe Pope didn’t stand for re-election at the 2013 AGM.
(4) Ottonel Popesco’s remuneration includes the remuneration of his wife.
(5) Stefan Widegren, through Soliden Sagl, has provided consulting services to the Group totaling EUR 167 thousands. His remuneration includes the health insurance for his wife.

please refer to note 9 on page 93 for a detailed overview of the share ownership.
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The audit committee of cavotec sa is involved in a wide range of 
activities including inter alia, the review of all quarterly, half - yearly 
and annual financial statements prior to their approval by the board 
and release to the public. The committee has periodic contact with 
the external auditors, pricewaterhousecoopers, through the pwc 
engagement partner responsible for the audit and through the 
principal engagement manager, to review any unusual matters and 
the effect of new accounting pronouncements. as a matter of policy, 
the audit committee meets with the pwc engagement partner without 
the presence of Management at least once every year. further, the 
committee reviews the annual audit plan, as prepared by the external 
auditors, including the adequacy of the scopes of the audits proposed 
for the principal locations and the proposed audit fees. The engagement 
of the auditors for non - audit services of significance is approved in 
advance by the audit committee.

The group internal audit function, which reports to the chairman of the 
board, has a direct line of communication with the audit committee, 
which receives all internal audit reports from the Director of internal 
audit as and when issued. The annual internal audit plan is reviewed 
by the audit committee and is approved by the chairman of the board.

at least once every year Management gives a presentation to the audit 
committee on the risk profile of the group and on the procedures 
in place for the management of risk. risks related to the potential 
impairment of assets and the related provisions required for financial 
exposures are reviewed and discussed with Management at least once 
a year, normally in conjunction with the third quarter closing.

The current members of the audit committee of cavotec sa are 
lakshmi c. Khanna (chairman), leena essen and christer granskog. 
currently all the all the members are financially experienced and have 
relevant finance and/or auditing experience; one of then, namely 
lakshmi c. Khanna is a chartered accountant. 

The audit committee of cavotec sa met eight times in 2013 and 
twice in 2014. 

Remuneration Committee
The purpose of the remuneration committee is to regularly review, and 
recommend changes to board members’ remuneration to ensure that 
it is at an appropriate level, and effectively managed, to best advance 
the business objectives of cavotec and assist the board of Directors in 
the establishment of remuneration policies and practices for and in the 
remuneration setting and review of the company’s ceo, other senior 
executives, and board members. The compensation plans should 
reflect market conditions in the various countries where cavotec is 
operating. During 2013, the remuneration committee of cavotec sa 
has carried out, with the support of the consulting firm Tower watson, a 

complete position analysis of senior managers and linked the outcome 
to compensation database statistics for all markets.

The current members of the remuneration committee in cavotec 
sa are christer granskog, lakshmi Khanna and erik lautmann. The 
remuneration committee of cavotec sa met three times in 2013.

Group key Management
The composition of the group Key Management is set out in the 
section “executive Management committee”.

cavotec’s operational structure is reasonably flat in order to ensure 
that the group’s operations and decision-making processes are 
efficient and responsive. strategic, group-related operations are the 
responsibility of the ceo with the support of the cfo and the regional 
Managers and the Managing Directors. all material decisions within the 
day-to-day operations of the company are taken by the ceo.

Due to the inherent international character of the group, the Managing 
Directors of local cavotec companies – who are close to their 
customers, suppliers and staff in their respective time zones, cultural 
environment and geographical area – take day-to-day operational 
decisions. Managing Directors report to regional Managers, who 
in turn report to the ceo. besides a few exceptions, both regional 
Managers and Managing Directors live in the same country and region 
as they operate in. often the regional Manager is also a Managing 
Director of a major company within his or her region. The chairman, 
the ceo and cfo are all working out of cavotec’s corporate office 
in switzerland. cavotec has also located to the corporate office its 
functions for administration, business Development, corporate 
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communications, erp & logistics, finance & accounting, human 
resources, information Technology, investor relations & pr, patents & 
Trademarks, sales & Marketing, strategic corporate projects, Technical 
r&D, Treasury and other special advisory roles.

The Cavotec Executive Management Committee – EMC
The eMc is nominated by the ceo and currently consists of thirteen 
members.

The eMc is made up of members from the group’s most experienced 
and knowledgeable management team. This includes top corporate 
staff, several regional Managers and several group Market unit 
Managers.

The eMc advises on and supports the implementation of global 
strategies as defined by the ceo in specific areas. it advises the ceo 
on strategic management decisions and helps to implement such 
decisions according to each member’s specific responsibilities or as 
directed by the ceo. The eMc also assists the ceo with the evaluation 
and implementation of company acquisitions.

The eMc discusses and defines strategies, policies, acquisitions, overall 
developments and administrative improvements. Key Management 
implements recommendations made by the eMc. The ceo presents 
the most strategic recommendations to the board of Directors for their 
consideration and decision. 

once a board decision is taken, the eMc assists the ceo to implement 
the same. eMc members also support the integration teams set up to 
oversee all new acquisitions.

REMUnERATIon AnD InCEnTIVE PlAnS
Remuneration of the Board of Directors
The remuneration to the members of the board of Directors in cavotec sa, 
is, in deviation from the code, resolved by the board of Directors as set 
out in the articles of association. in addition, board members may receive 
remuneration for consultancy services provided to the company. none of 
the members of the board of Directors are entitled to any benefits when 
resigning from the board, in their capacity as board members. however, 
board members may be entitled to benefits according to employment 
or consultancy agreements that will continue even if the board member 
would resign as board member.

Remuneration levels for Senior Executives
To ensure strong cohesion across the group, some 15 years ago 
cavotec introduced a system under which bonuses for eMc members, 
regional Managers, Managing Directors and other senior executives 
are determined by overall, consolidated group results. This “one 
bottom-line” policy works well and has been instrumental to the group 
becoming a genuinely global player. cavotec is mindful that it is a 
mini-multinational. however, as cavotec grows, the regional Manager 
role is likely to evolve.
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Incentive plan for Senior Executives
cavotec’s board of Directors has reviewed current remuneration 
practices in order to retain and attract talented senior executives as 
well as aligning senior executives’ and shareholders’ interests. as a 
result of the review, the board of Directors has recommended a share 
based long-term incentive plan with performance requirements, which 
was introduced in 2012 (lTip 2012). The lTip 2012 was approved 
by the agM in May 2012 and was subscribed to for over 90% by the 
selected management. an identical plan (lTip 2013) was approved 
by cavotec’s annual general Meeting in 2013 and another plan (lTip 
2014) will be proposed to cavotec’s ordinary general Meeting in 
2014 for shareholder approval.

InTERnAl ConTRol SySTEM (ICS)
The company has not established a separate department for internal 
control. This task is performed by audit committee of the board of 
Directors and the board of Directors. Moreover, at group level each 
Managing Director of a legal entity together with the legal and/or 
operational entity’s finance department and the Director of internal 
audit – reporting to the chairman – is responsible for ensuring that 
the necessary controls are performed along with adequate monitoring.

internal controls comprise the control of the company’s and group’s 
organisation, procedures and remedial measures. The objective 
is to ensure reliable and correct financial reporting, and to ensure 
that the company’s and group’s financial reports are prepared in 

accordance with law and applicable accounting standards and that 
other requirements are complied with. The internal control system is 
also intended to monitor compliance with the company’s and group’s 
policies, principles and instructions. in addition, the control system 
monitors security for the company assets and monitors that the 
company’s resources are exploited in a cost-effective and adequate 
manner. internal control also involves following up on the implemented 
information and business system, and risk analysis. 
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The boarD of DirecTors 
of cavoTec sa 
is pleaseD To presenT 
The consoliDaTeD financial 
sTaTeMenTs for 2013

Stefan Widegren
Chairman 

ottonel popesco
Chief executive officer 

This report is dated 18 March 2014 and is signed on behalf 
of the board of cavotec sa by

please note that all reported amounts in this report are in euro. 
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EUR 000’s notes 2013 2012
revenue from sales of goods  227,704  220,072 
other income 5  5,892  4,810 
raw materials and components  (119,010)  (110,171)
employee benefit costs 6  (62,336)  (58,732)
operating expenses 7/8  (37,223)  (34,243)

 
Gross operating Result  15,027  21,736 

Depreciation and amortisation  (4,521)  (3,758)
 
operating Result  10,506  17,978 

interest expenses - net 9  (1,219)  (1,263)
currency exchange differences - net 9  (347)  (477)

Profit before income tax  8,940  16,237 

income taxes 10  1,513  (4,045)

Profit for the year  10,453  12,192 

other comprehensive income:
actuarial gain (loss)  (43)  (30) 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (43)  (30)

currency translation differences  (5,692)  856 
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit  (5,692)  856

other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (5,735) 826

Total comprehensive income for the year  4,718  13,018 

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
equity holders of the group  4,751  13,138 
non-controlling interest  (33)  (120)
Total  4,718  13,018 

Profit / (loss) attributed to:
equity holders of the group  10,494  12,319 
non-controlling interest  (41)  (127)
Total  10,453  12,192 

basic and diluted earnings per share attributed
to the equity holders of the group 28  0.147  0.173 
average number of shares  71,332,700  71,332,700 

CAVoTEC SA & SUBSIDIARIES
Statement of Comprehensive Income

consoliDaTeD financial sTaTeMenTs

The notes on pages 58 to 85 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CAVoTEC SA & SUBSIDIARIES
Balance Sheet

Assets
EUR 000’s

notes 2013 2012

Current assets
cash and cash equivalents  13,928  10,313 
Trade receivables 11  48,705  50,583 
Tax assets 12  1,253  530 
other current receivables 13  4,732  3,596 
inventories 14  40,110  39,561 
assets held for sale 15  2,213 -
Total current assets  110,941  104,583 

non-current assets
property, plant and equipment 15  26,861  28,840 
intangible assets 16  66,251  67,709 
non-current financial assets 17  57  153 
Deferred tax assets 18  13,501  7,094 
other non-current receivables  2,026  2,346 
Total non-current assets  108,696  106,141 

Total assets  219,637  210,725 

Equity and liabilities 
EUR 000’s

notes 2013 2012

Current liabilities
bank overdrafts 19  -    (1,829)
current financial liabilities 19  (4,654)  (2,911)
Trade payables 20  (31,526)  (36,973)
Tax liabilities 21 (2,724) (5,268)
other current liabilities 22  (11,834)  (14,451)
Total current liabilities  (50,738)  (61,432)

non-current liabilities
non-current financial liabilities 19  (45,353)  (30,088)
Deferred tax liabilities 23  (4,298)  (4,345)
other non-current liabilities  (704)  (885)
provision for risks and charges 24  (9,775)  (7,146)
Total non-current liabilities  (60,130)  (42,464)

Total liabilities  (110,868)  (103,896)

Equity
equity attributable to owners of the parent 26,27  (108,773)  (106,939)
non-controlling interests  4  110 
Total equity  (108,769)  (106,829)

Total equity and liabilities  (219,637)  (210,725)

The notes on pages 58 to 85 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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EUR 000’s

Equity related to 
owners 

of the parent

Reserves Retained
earnings

Equity related to 
owners 

of the parent

non-controlling
interest

Total
equity

balance as at 1 January 2012  (90,553)  (3,472)  (944)  (94,968)  95  (94,873)

profit for the year - -  (12,319)  (12,319)  127  (12,192)
exchange differences on translation  -  (850) -  (850)  (6)  (856)
actuarial (gain) loss - 30 -  30 - 30

Total comprehensive income 
and expenses  -  (820)  (12,319)  (13,138)  121  (13,018)

capital reduction 1,167 - -  1,167 -  1,167 
capital increase -  - -  -  (106)  (106)

Transactions with shareholders  1,167  -  -  1,167  (106)  1,061 

Balance as at 31 December 2012  (89,386)  (4,292)  (13,263)  (106,940)  110  (106,830)

balance as at 1 January 2013  (89,386)  (4,292)  (13,263)  (106,940)  110  (106,830)

profit for the year - -  (10,494)  (10,494)  41  (10,453)
exchange differences on translation  -  5,700 -  5,700  (8)  5,692 
actuarial (gain) loss -  43 -  43 -  43 

Total comprehensive income 
and expenses  -  5,743  (10,494)  (4,751)  33  (4,718)

capital reduction 2,921  (3) -  2,918 -  2,918 
capital increase -  - -  -  (139)  (139)

Transactions with shareholders  2,921  (3)  -  2,918  (139)  2,779 

Balance as at 31 December 2013  (86,464)  1,448  (23,757)  (108,773)  4  (108,769)

CAVoTEC SA & SUBSIDIARIES
Statement of Changes in Equity

consoliDaTeD financial sTaTeMenTs

The notes on pages 58 to 85 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



57

EUR 000’s 2013 2012

Profit for the year  10,453  12,192 

Adjustments for:
net interest expenses  1,013  949 
current taxes  5,253  7,470 
Depreciation and amortisation  4,521  3,758 
Deferred tax  (6,767)  (3,425)
provision for risks and charges  2,155  5,148 
capital gain or loss on assets  46  (17)
other items not involving cash flows  (23)  305 
interest paid  (970)  (967)
Taxes paid  (8,520)  (5,792)

 (3,292)  7,429 

Cash flow before change in working capital  7,161  19,621 

Impact of changes in working capital
inventories  (164)  (11,094)
Trade receivables  2,154  (8,207)
other current receivables  (1,137)  2,849 
Trade payables  (6,389)  2,995 
other current liabilities  (2,657)  4,034 
long term receivables  319  1,702 
Impact of changes involving working capital  (7,874)  (7,721)

net cash inflow /(outflow) from operating activities  (713)  11,900 

financial activities
increase (decrease) of loans and borrowings  16,974  (3,868)
capital reduction  (2,918)  (1,167)
net cash inflow /(outflow) from financial activities  14,056  (5,035)

Investing activities
investments in property, plant and equipment  (4,162)  (6,970)
investments in intangible assets  (1,113)  (1,350)
(increase) decrease in non-current financial assets  96  101
Deferred consideration  - (1,516)
increase in other assets  - (2,653)
Disposal of assets  76  205 
net cash outflow from investing activities  (5,103)  (12,183)

cash at the beginning of the year  8,484  12,952 
cash flow for the year  8,240  (5,318)
currency exchange differences  (2,796)  850 
Cash at the end of the year  13,928  8,484 

Cash comprises:
cash and cash equivalents  13,928  10,313 
bank overdrafts -  (1,829)
Total  13,928  8,484 

CAVoTEC SA & SUBSIDIARIES
Statement of Cash flows - Indirect Method

The notes on pages 58 to 85 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.



58

consoliDaTeD financial sTaTeMenTs

noTE 1. GEnERAl InfoRMATIon
cavotec is a global engineering group that manufactures power transmission, distribution and control technologies that form the link between fixed and mobile 
equipment in the ports & Maritime, airports, Mining & Tunnelling and general industry sectors. all engineering and most manufacturing of cavotec’s products and 
systems take place at nine specialised engineering centres of excellence in germany (three), sweden, norway, italy, the united states (two) and new Zealand. 
cavotec has fully owned sales companies spread across the world which monitor local markets and co-operate with cavotec’s centres of excellence. 

The financial statements of the cavotec group for 2013 reflect the business activities of cavotec sa.

cavotec sa is the ultimate parent company of the cavotec group, its registered office is via balestra 27, ch-6900 lugano, switzerland. cavotec sa shares are 
listed on nasDaQ oMX in stockholm, sweden.

These financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 18 March 2014. The report is subject to approval by the ordinary general Meeting on 
23 april 2014. 

noTE 2. BASIS of PREPARATIon
The consolidated financial statements of cavotec group are prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standard (ifrs). 

Historical Cost Convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through statement of comprehensive income. 

Adoption of new standards and interpretations
The following standards and amendments have been adopted by cavotec for the first time for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2013 but have had no 
significant impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements:

amendment to ias 1, ‘financial statement presentation’ regarding other comprehensive income. 
The main change resulting from these amendments is a requirement for entities to group items presented in ‘other comprehensive income’ (oci) on the basis of 
whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The 2012 comparative information has been restated for this 
change. The change had no impact on the group’s overall results and financial position. 

ias 19 (revised) ‘employee benefits’
The group introduced the revised ifrs accounting standard ias 19 on employee benefits as of 1 January 2013 including the amendment issued in november 
2013. The principal impact of this is that the return on pension plan assets and the interest calculated on the defined benefit obligations now use the same interest 
rate. previously the return on plan assets was calculated based on the higher long term expected return on assets, so the adoption of the new accounting standard 
increases the annual cost of post-employment benefits. for cavotec the impact of this change would a reduction in net financial income of less than 2 thousands 
eur for the year ended 31 December 2012. furthermore, the revised ias 19 requires the immediate recognition of past service costs in the consolidated income 
statement, which were previously only recognized upon vesting. This amendment has no impact on cavotec. 

ifrs 10, ‘consolidated financial statements’, builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor in whether an entity should 
be included within the consolidated financial statements of the parent company. There is no impact of adoption on the financial statements.

ifrs 11, ‘Joint arrangements’ focuses on the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement rather than its legal form. There are two types of joint 
arrangements: joint operations and joint ventures. Joint operations arise where the investors have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of an 
arrangement. a joint operator accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint ventures arise where the investors have rights to the net 
assets of the arrangement; joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method. proportional consolidation of joint arrangements is no longer permitted. There 
is no impact of adoption on the financial statements.

ifrs 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’ includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities, including joint arrangements, 
associates, structured entities and other off balance sheet vehicles. limited additional disclosures have been added on the financial statements following the 
adoption.

ifrs 13, ‘fair value Measurement’, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair 
value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across ifrss. limited additional disclosures have been added on the financial statements following the 
adoption.

Moreover the amendment to ifrs 7: Disclosures - offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities has been adopted without and impact on the financial 
statements. 

notes to the financial Statements
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Issued standards not yet effective
The group is currently assessing the potential impacts of other new and revised standards and interpretations that will be effective from 1 January 2014 and 
beyond. based on the analysis to date, the group does not anticipate that these will have a material impact on the group’s overall results and financial position.

Critical accounting estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with ifrs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. it also requires the management to 
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

noTE 3. SUMMARy of SIGnIfICAnT ACCoUnTInG PolICIES 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the 
periods presented, namely, 31 December 2013 and 2012.

foREIGn CURREnCy TRAnSlATIon
(i) Functional and presentation currency
items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the related entity operates (‘the 
functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in euros, which is the group and company’s presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. foreign exchange 
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and 
qualifying net investment hedges. 

(iii) Foreign operations
The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different 
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

• assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet.
• income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates.
• all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.
• The consolidated statements of cash flow are translated at average exchange rates during the period, whereas cash and cash equivalents are translated at the 

spot exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings are taken to shareholders’ equity. when a foreign 
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, a proportionate share of such exchange differences are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income, as part of the gain or loss on sale where applicable.

goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at 
the closing rate.

ConSolIDATIon
(i) Subsidiaries
subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more 
than one half of the voting rights. subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are de-consolidated from the date 
that control ceases.

The group uses the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value 
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or 
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. contingent consideration is valued based on the probability that the consideration will be paid and 
changes in the fair value are recognized in profit or loss. acquisition-related costs are expensed. identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities 
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration 
amendments. cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment.
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The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. if the cost of acquisition 
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. unrealised losses are also eliminated but are 
considered an impairment indicator of the asset transferred.

(ii) Transactions with non-controlling interest
The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the group. for purchases from non-controlling interests, the 
difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. gains or losses 
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(iii) Associates
associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the 
voting rights. investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The group’s investment in 
associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.

The group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, and its share of post-acquisition 
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the 
carrying amount of the investment. when the group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associates, including any other unsecured 
receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 

unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the associates. unrealised losses are 
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. accounting policies of associates have been changed where 
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies by the group.

(iv) Scope of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the statements at 31 December 2013 of the companies included in the scope of consolidation, which have been 
prepared in accordance with ifrs adopted by the group. below is a list of companies consolidated on a line by line basis and the respective shares held either 
directly or indirectly by cavotec sa:

notes to the financial Statements

consoliDaTeD financial sTaTeMenTs
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name Registered office Type of Business Controlled through % Group ownership
 Direct Indirect

cavotec (swiss) sa switzerland services company cavotec sa 100%
cavotec australia pty ltd australia sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec belgium nv belgium sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec brasil comercio de sistemas industriais ltda. brazil sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec canada inc canada sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec connectors ab sweden centre of excellence cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec Dabico us inc united states of america centre of excellence cavotec us holdings inc 100%
cavotec Danmark as Denmark sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec germany gmbh germany centre of excellence cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec engineering services ltd india engineering cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec finland oy finland sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec france rMs sa france sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec group holdings nv The netherlands holding cavotec MoorMaster ltd 100%
cavotec hong Kong ltd china sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec iberica s.l. spain sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec india ltd india sales company cavotec group holdings nv 85%
cavotec inet us inc. united states of america centre of excellence cavotec us holdings inc 100%
cavotec international ltd united Kingdom services company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec Korea ltd Korea sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec latin america argentina sales company cavotec group holdings nv 90%
cavotec latin america argentina sales company ipalco bv 10%
cavotec Micro-control as norway centre of excellence cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec Micro-control gmbh germany centre of excellence cavotec Deutschland holdings gmbh 100%
cavotec Middle east fZe u.a.e. sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec MoorMaster ltd new Zeland engineering cavotec sa 100%
cavotec nederland bv The netherlands sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec norge as norway sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec realty france sci france services company ipalco bv 100%
cavotec realty germany bv The netherlands services company ipalco bv 100%
cavotec realty norway as norway services company ipalco bv 100%
cavotec realty usa llc unites states of america services company ipalco bv 100%
cavotec russia ooo russia sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec sa switzerland holding - 100%
cavotec shanghai ltd china sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec singapore pte ltd singapore sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec south africa pte ltd south africa sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec specimas spa italy centre of excellence cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec sverige ab sweden sales company cavotec group holdings nv 100%
cavotec uK ltd united Kingdom centre of excellence cavotec international ltd 100%
cavotec us holdings inc united states of america holding cavotec sa 100%
cavotec usa inc unites states of america sales company cavotec canada holding inc 100%
ipalco bv The netherlands holding/services company cavotec group holdings nv 100%

on 1 January 2013, cavotec canada holdings inc. was merged into cavotec canada inc. 

SEGMEnT REPoRTInG
operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker (coDM), who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the chief executive 
officer jointly supported and assisted by the executive Management committee.

in addition, the group organizes its marketing effort under four Market units: ports & Maritime, Mining & Tunnelling, airports and general industry.

non-CURREnT ASSETS hElD foR SAlE AnD DISConTInUED oPERATIonS
fixed assets held for sale and operations that are being closed down are reported as non-current assets held for sale and Discontinued operations if their value, 
within one year, will be recovered through a sale and not through continued use in the operations. on the reclassification date, fixed assets held for sale are stated 
at the lower of fair value less selling expenses and the carrying amount and, following reclassification, the assets are no longer depreciated.

PRoPERTy, PlAnT AnD EQUIPMEnT
all property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment. historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the items.
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subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. all other repairs and maintenance are charged to the 
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

land is not depreciated. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using a straight line method so as to expense the cost of the assets over their 
useful lives. The rates are as follows:

Annual Percentage
industrial buildings 4
building improvements 20
plant and machinery 10 to 20
laboratory equipment and miscellaneous tools 20
furniture and office machines 20
Motor vehicles 20
computer hardware 33

capital work in progress is not depreciated until commissioned. an asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. 
These are included in the statement of comprehensive income.

leasehold improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful life or over the lease term, if shorter.

lEASES
leases in which the group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s 
inception at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. each lease payment is allocated between the 
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.

The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges are included in other long term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the 
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each 
period.

leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. payments made under 
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period 
of the lease.

InTAnGIBlE ASSETS
(i) Goodwill
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired business/associate 
at the date of acquisition. goodwill on acquisitions of businesses is included in intangible assets. goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in investments 
in associates. 

goodwill is not amortised. instead, goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be 
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating 
to the entity sold.

goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (“cgu”) for the purpose of impairment testing. each of those cash generating units represents the group’s investment 
in each Market unit. reductions in the value of goodwill are recognised if the recoverable amount of goodwill is less than its carrying amount.

(ii) Research and development
research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing of new or improved 
products) are recognised as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will be a success considering its commercial and technical feasibility and its costs 
can be measured reliably. it must also be probable that the intangible asset will generate future economic benefits and that it is clearly identifiable and allocable 
to a specific product.

The expenditure capitalised comprises all directly attributable costs, including costs of materials, services, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. 
other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an 
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets at cost and amortised from the 
point at which the asset is ready for use on a straight line basis over its useful life, which varies from 3 to 5 years.

notes to the financial Statements
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(iii) Patents
patents acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at acquisition date. patents are amortised on a straight line basis over the period over which 
they are valid (not exceeding 20 years) or their estimated useful life if shorter.

(iv) Marketing and customer related intangible assets
Marketing and customer related intangibles such as customer relations and other similar items acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at 
acquisition date. They are amortised on a straight line basis over the period over which they are valid or their estimated useful life if shorter.

InVEnToRIES 
inventories are measured at the lower of acquisition cost (generally the weighted average cost) or manufacturing cost and net realisable value. Manufacturing costs 
comprise all costs that are directly attributable to the manufacturing process, such as direct material and labour, direct engineering, production and tooling and 
other non-recurring costs and production related overheads (based on normal operating capacity and normal consumption of material, labour and other production 
costs), including depreciation charges. net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated variable costs necessary to make the sale.

inventoried costs include amounts relating to programs and contracts with long-term production cycles, a portion of which is not expected to be realized within 
one year. 

Moormaster and Microcontrol inventories include deferred production costs that represent actual costs incurred for production of early units that exceed the 
estimated average cost of all units in the program accounting quantity. units produced early in a program require substantially more effort (labour and other 
resources) than units produced later in a program because of volume efficiencies and the effects of learning. The deferred costs are expected to be fully recovered 
when all units included in the accounting quantity are delivered as the expected unit cost for later deliveries is below the estimated average cost of all units in the 
program.

provisions are made for inventories with a lower market value or which are slow-moving. if it becomes apparent that such inventory can be reused, provisions are 
reversed with inventory being revalued up to the lower of its net realizable value or original cost. unsalable inventory is fully written off.

IMPAIRMEnT of non-fInAnCIAl ASSETS
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. intangible assets that 
have an indefinite useful life including goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment irrespective of whether any circumstances 
identifying a possible impairment have been identified. an impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. for the purposes of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). 

fInAnCIAl InSTRUMEnTS
Recognition and derecognition
financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. purchases and sales of financial 
assets are accounted for at trade date, which is the day when the group contractually commits to acquire or dispose of the assets. Trade receivables are recognized 
on issuance of invoices. liabilities are recognized when the other party has performed and there is a contractual obligation to pay. 

Derecognition (fully or partially) of a financial asset occurs when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial instruments expire or are transferred and 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been removed from the group. The group derecognizes (fully or partially) a financial liability when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or otherwise expires. 

a financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Measurement and classification
financial instruments are, at initial recognition, measured at fair value with addition or deduction of transaction costs in the case of a financial asset or a financial 
liability not measured at fair value through statement of comprehensive income. financial instruments, upon initial recognition, are classified in accordance with the 
categories in ias 39 based on the purpose of the acquisition of the instrument. The financial instruments are classified as follows:

• financial instruments are designated at fair value through statement of comprehensive income if the group manages such investments and makes purchase 
and sale decisions based on their fair value. They are included in “current or non-current financial assets”. financial instruments at fair value through profit and 
loss are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognized in profit and loss.

• loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when 
the group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. loans and receivables are included in “trade 
receivables”, “other current & non-current receivables”, and “non-current financial assets” in the balance sheet. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair 
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value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for doubtful debts. collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an on-going basis. Debts 
which are known to be uncollectible are written off. a provision for doubtful debts is established when there is objective evidence that the company may not be 
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables, and on a prudent basis, on past due accounts. The amount of the provision is the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and realisable value. The amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The 
fair value of loans and receivables is the same as the carrying amount since they are not discounted given the short expected time to payment.

• held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the group has the positive intention 
and ability to hold to maturity. held to maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any 
impairment losses.

• available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale. subsequent to initial recognition, they are 
measured at fair value and changes therein are recognized in other comprehensive income except for impairment losses which are recognized in profit and loss. 
when an investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive income is transferred to profit and loss.

• Derivative instruments are measured at fair value. for derivatives which are not part of hedge accounting (classified as financial assets or liabilities held for 
trading), changes in fair value are reported as operating or financial income or expense based on the purpose of the use of the derivatives and whether 
the instruments relate to operational or financial items. fair value changes on derivatives are recognized in statement of comprehensive income unless the 
derivatives are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow or net investment hedges (see section below about hedge accounting).

Hedge accounting
in order to qualify for hedge accounting according to ias 39, the hedging relationship must be designated, the hedge expected to be highly effective and the 
hedge relationship documented. The group assesses, evaluates and documents effectiveness both at hedge inception and on an on-going basis. The method of 
recognizing a gain or loss resulting from hedging instruments is dependent on the type of hedge relationship, i.e. which type of risk exposure that is secured by 
the hedging instrument. 

changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in profit and loss, together with any changes in the fair 
value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. These changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability are recognized in profit 
and loss to offset the effect of gain or loss on the hedging instrument. 

changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent that 
the hedge is effective and the accumulated changes in fair value are recognized as a separate component in equity. To the extent that the hedge is ineffective, 
changes in fair value are recognized in profit and loss. if the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated 
or exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity via other comprehensive income 
remains there until the forecast transaction occurs. when the hedged item is a non-financial asset, the amount recognized in equity via other comprehensive 
income is transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when it is recognized. in other cases, the amount recognized in equity via other comprehensive income 
is transferred to profit and loss in the same period that the hedged item affects profit and loss.

gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in other comprehensive income. gain or loss relating to the 
ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit and loss. gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are included in profit and loss on 
disposal of foreign operations.

Impairment of financial assets
financial assets, except for such assets classified at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
objective evidence that they are impaired. a financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. an impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. an impairment loss in respect 
of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its current fair value. if the reasons for write-down should cease to exist, the value of the asset 
is restored up to the value it would have if no impairment had been recognised.

CASh AnD CASh EQUIVAlEnTS
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions and other short term, highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and 
bank overdrafts.

BoRRowInGS
borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. any difference between 
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings 
using the effective interest method. 
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fees paid on the establishment of an undrawn loan facility, are recognised as prepayments and amortised on a straight line basis over the term of the facility. borrowings 
are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of liabilities for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

BoRRowInG CoSTS
borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset 
for its intended use or sale. other borrowing costs are expensed. 

PRoVISIonS
provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the cost required to settle the 
present obligation at the balance sheet date. if the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows at a rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

provisions for restructuring cover expenses that arise directly from restructuring measures, are necessary for restructuring and are not related to future business operations. 
such expenses include severance payments to employees and compensation payments in respect of rented property that can no longer be used. restructuring measures 
may include the sale or termination of business units, site closures, relocations of business activities or fundamental reorganizations of business units. The respective provisions 
are established when a detailed restructuring plan has been drawn up, resolved upon by the responsible decision-making level of management and communicated to the 
employees and / or their representatives. 

provisions for warranties are recognised at the time the products are sold based on the estimated cost using historical data for level of repairs and replacements.

provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected economic benefits to be derived from a contract are lower than the cost of meeting the 
obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net 
cost of continuing with the contract.

REVEnUE RECoGnITIon
revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of value 
added taxes, goods and service tax (gsT), rebates and discounts. The group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when 
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the group’s activities, as described below. 

The group offers multiple element arrangements to meet its customers’ needs. These arrangements may involve the delivery of multiple products and/or 
performance of services (such as installation, commissioning and training) and the delivery and/or performance may occur at different points in time or over 
different periods. Deliverables of such multiple element arrangements are evaluated to estimate the selling price that reflects at inception the group’s best estimate 
of what the selling price would be if the elements were sold on a stand-alone basis. such arrangements generally include industry-specific performance and 
termination provisions, such as in the event of substantial delays or non-delivery.

(i) Sales of goods
revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, which in most cases occurs in 
connection with delivery. when the products are sold subject to installation and this constitutes a significant portion of the contract, revenue is recognized when 
the installation is completed.

(ii) Sales of services
service revenue reflects revenues earned from the group’s activities in providing services to customers primarily subsequent to the sale and delivery of a products 
or complete systems. such revenues consist of maintenance-type contracts, field service activities that include personnel and accompanying spare parts, and 
installation and commissioning of products as a stand-alone service or as part of a service contract. revenue from service transactions is recognized as services 
are performed. for long-term service contracts, revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract or, if the performance pattern is other 
than straight-line, as the services are provided or accepted. 

(iii) Long term contracts
contract revenues and related costs from contracts involving complete construction project solutions achieved through system integration are recognized on the 
percentage of completion method when the outcome of the contract can be measured reliably. completion is generally measured by reference to the cost incurred 
to date as a percentage of the estimated total project costs. The milestone output method is applied when the nature of the individual projects indicates that a 
milestone method is the most applicable measure of progress.

billings that exceed revenues recognized under percentage of completion are recorded as advances from customers. revenues recognized under percentage of 
completion method that exceed billings are booked as unbilled receivables. 
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recognized revenues and profits are subject to revisions during the project life span in the event that the assumptions regarding the overall project outcome are 
revised. The cumulative impact of a revision in estimates is recorded in the period when such revisions become known and measurable. losses on projects are 
recognized immediately when known and measurable. 

claims for extra work or change in scope of work may be included in contract revenues when collection is highly probable.

VAlUE ADDED TAX (VAT) AnD GooDS AnD SERVICES TAX (GST) 
The statement of comprehensive income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive of vaT or gsT. all items in the balance sheet are also 
stated net of vaT or gsT, with the exception of receivables and payables, which include vaT or gsT invoiced.

EMPloyEE BEnEfITS
liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the 
reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled. 

(i) Pension obligations
a defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and the group has no legal or constructive 
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and 
prior periods. a defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

cavotec sa and cavotec (swiss) sa operate a pension scheme via the employee benefits foundation and are affiliated with the swiss life collective bvg foundation 
based in Zurich. all benefits in accordance with the regulations are reinsured in their entirety with swiss life ltd within the framework of the corresponding contract 
and determined by actuarial calculations for the first time as of 31 December 2011. These schemes are defined benefit plans due to the fact that cavotec can 
be requested to pay restructuring contributions in the case of a shortfall. although these schemes are defined benefit plans, defined contribution accounting was 
applied to the schemes in prior years due to materiality reasons. starting as of 31 December 2011 the accounting was changed to defined benefit accounting.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such 
as age, years of service and compensation.

actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive 
income in the period in which they arise.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the 
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The 
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds 
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.

(ii) Share-based payments
The group has share-based incentive programs, which have been offered annually to certain employees based on position and performance, consisting of a 
performance component and a retention component. The accumulated expense recognized equals the expected cash amount to be paid at settlement (or liability 
amount transferred to equity when employees have a choice and choose to settle in shares).

DIVIDEnS AnD oThER DISTRIBUTIonS
Distributions to the shareholders are recognised as a liability in the group’s financial statements in the period in which they are approved by the ordinary general 
Meeting.

TREASURy ShARES
Treasury shares are deducted from consolidated equity at the acquisition value. Differences between this amount and the amount received for disposing of treasury 
shares are recorded in consolidated retained earnings.

InCoME TAX 
The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current years taxable income based on the national income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted 
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in 
the financial statements, and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities are 
settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction. The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of 
deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred tax asset or liability. an exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the 
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initial recognition of an asset or a liability. no deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, 
other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit and loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available 
to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets are regularly reviewed for recoverability and a valuation allowance is established based upon 
historical losses, projected future taxable income and the expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries and 
associates where the group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances 
relate to the same taxation authority. current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to 
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity.

noTE 4. CRITICAl ACCoUnTInG ESTIMATES AnD jUDGMEnTS
estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. critical 
accounting policies and estimates in the period relate to trade receivables, inventory and provisions. as of the balance sheet dates the group has no other 
significant estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities within the foreseeable future.

DEfERRED TAXES
Deferred tax assets are recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes of assets and liabilities and the 
amounts used for taxation purposes and for tax loss carry-forwards. The group records valuation allowances for deferred tax assets based upon management’s 
estimates of future taxable profit in different tax jurisdictions. The actual results may differ from these estimates, due to change in the business climate and change 
in tax legislation. see notes 18 and 23 for additional information.

lEGAl PRoCEEDInGS
The group recognizes a liability when it has an obligation from a past event involving the transfer of economic benefits and when a reasonable estimate can be 
made of what the transfer might be. The group reviews outstanding legal cases regularly in order to assess the need for provisions in the financial statements. 
These reviews consider the factors of the specific case by internal legal counsel and through the use of outside legal counsel and advisors when necessary. To 
the extent that management’s assessment of the factors considered are not reflected in subsequent developments, the financial statements could be affected. 
see note 32 for additional information.

GooDwIll IMPAIRMEnT TEST
The group allocates the goodwill to the cash-generating units (cgu’s) identified according to the Market units.

 
 EUR 000’s

net book value 
as of 31/12/2012

Translation 
differences and other

Acquisitions 
and dispositions

Impairment net book value 
as of 31/12/2013

ports & Maritime  23,361   (78)  -    -    23,283  
airports  31,287   (1,069)  -    -    30,218  
Mining & Tunnelling 530  -  -    -    530  
general industry  6,468   (20)  -    -    6,448  
Total  61,646   (1,167)  -    -    60,479  

for the purpose of estimating the value in use of the Market units, cash flows were projected for the next five years based on past experiences, actual operating 
results and management’s best estimate about future developments and market assumptions.

The value in use is mainly driven by the terminal value, which is particularly sensitive to changes in the assumptions on the terminal value growth rate and discount 
rate. Terminal value growth rates are related to industry specific trends with the support of external macroeconomic sources of data and an assessment as to the 
ability of the company to take advantage of these markets taking into account orders received, commercial negotiations currently in place and future expectations.
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The following table presents the key assumptions used to determine the value in use for impairment test purposes:
 2013 Terminal value growth rate Pre-tax weighted average cost of capital
ports & Maritime 2.0% 9.7%
airports 2.0% 9.7%
Mining & Tunnelling 1.0% 9.7%
general industry 1.5% 9.7%

based on the estimated cash flows these Market units are expected to generate from their businesses, discounted back to their present value using the above 
mentioned discount rate, the management concluded that goodwill allocated to these Market units remained recoverable at 31 December 2013. Management 
believes that reasonable changes in key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts of all segments will not result in impairment.

in its review of the carrying amounts of goodwill of year-end 2013, management specifically considered the goodwill allocated to the airports Market unit. The 
sensitivity analysis shows that a reduction in gross margin of 5.58% or a rise of the discount rate to 16.53% would remove the remaining headroom.

noTE 5. oThER InCoME
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
carriage, insurance and freight  2,965  3,617 
commissions and royalties  53  141 
engineering services  1,434  - 
service and maintenance  227  - 
other miscellaneous income  1,213  1,052 
Total  5,892  4,810 

other income increased by eur 1,082 thousands mainly due to the increase of engineering and maintenance services.

noTE 6. EMPloyEE BEnEfIT CoSTS
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
salaries and wages  (49,490)  (46,474)
social security contributions  (7,295)  (6,810)
other employee benefits  (5,551)  (5,448)
Total  (62,336)  (58,732)

The employee benefit costs are based on an average workforce of 1,001 full time equivalents (2012: 891). This variance is mainly due to the expansion of the 
business in terms of sales and therefore of production.

The increase in the average number of employees derives mainly from the americas operating segment.

noTE 7. oPERATInG EXPEnSES
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
Transportation expenses  (2,616)  (2,819)
external services  (10,814)  (8,998)
Travelling expenses  (5,486)  (4,759)
general expenses  (9,453)  (8,830)
rent and leasing  (5,154)  (4,448)
credit losses  (123)  (3,044)
warranty costs  (3,577)  (1,345)
Total  (37,223)  (34,243)

noTE 8. non-RECURRInG ITEMS

 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
restructuring costs  -  1,706 
acquisition costs  -  53 
litigation costs  2,003  1,810 
Total operating costs  2,003  3,569 

non recurring items totalling eur 2,003 thousands (2012: 3,569) are included in operating expenses. The litigation costs are the costs sustained from the on-
going litigation with Mike colaco.
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noTE 9. nET fInAnCIAl CoSTS
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
interest income  61  60 
interest expense  (1,073)  (1,008)
change of derivatives fair value  27  (14)
amortization of issuance costs  (234)  (301)
Interest expenses - net  (1,219)  (1,263)

  
Currency exchange difference - net  (347)  (477)

  
Total  (1,566)  (1,741)

noTE 10. InCoME TAXES
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
current tax  (5,254)  (7,470)
Deferred tax  6,767  3,425 
Total  1,513  (4,045)

The tax on the group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to the profits of the 
consolidated entities as follows: 

Tax calculated at domestic tax rate applicable to profits in the respective countries     (2,625)  (7,409)
Tax effect of non-taxable income included in profit before tax 4,473  2,912 
Tax on non-deductible expenses or not related to income       (946)  (146)
Tax losses not valued       (543)  (1,067)
utilization of previously unrecognized DTa        255  518 
effects of tax losses / credits utilized          -   300 
losses carried forward with DTa     (5,868)  (2,578)
Total     (5,254)  (7,470)

The group operates in many jurisdictions where statutory tax rates vary from 0% to 40%. The weighted average applicable tax rate was 11.2% (2012: 23.4%). 
The decrease is caused by the change in the profitability of the group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries.

noTE 11. TRADE RECEIVABlES
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
Trade receivables  52,215  54,369 
provision for doubtful debts  (3,510)  (3,786)
Trade receivables, net  48,705  50,583 

The movement of the provision for doubtful debts is summarised below:

opening balance  (3,786)  (921)
provision recorded in the year  (393)  (3,011)
provision used in the year  516  67 
currency exchange difference  153  79 
Closing balance  (3,510)  (3,786)

noTE 12. TAX ASSETS
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
Tax assets  852  322 
vaT recoverable  401  208 
Total  1,253  530 
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noTE 13. oThER CURREnT RECEIVABlES
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
short term investments  9  5 
Deposits  1,013  1,075 
prepayments  2,116  1,721 
other receivables  1,594  795 
Total  4,732  3,596 

noTE 14. InVEnToRIES
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
raw materials  3,677  4,180 
work in progress  4,193  5,891 
finished goods  34,246  31,649 
provision for slow moving inventories  (2,006)  (2,159)
Total  40,110  39,561 

The movement of the provision for slow moving inventories is summarised below:
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012

opening balance  (2,158)  (1,511)
provision written off during the year  191  25 
provision recorded in the year  (133)  (677)
currency exchange difference  94  3 
Closing balance  (2,006)  (2,158)

noTE 15. PRoPERTy, PlAnT AnD EQUIPMEnT
 
 EUR 000’s

land & 
buildings

 Plant &
equipment

fixtures &
fittings

Total

year ended 31 December 2012
opening net book value  17,354  4,503  2,725  24,582 
additions  4,402  2,390  230  7,022 
Disposals -  (160) -  (160)
Depreciation  (692)  (1,710)  (565)  (2,967)
currency exchange differences  295  4  64  363 
Closing net book value  21,359  5,027  2,454  28,840 

At 31 December 2012  
cost  24,361  18,128  5,450  47,938 
accumulated depreciation  (3,002)  (13,099)  (2,998)  (19,098)
net book amount  21,359  5,027  2,454  28,840 

year ended 31 December 2013
opening net book value  21,359  5,027  2,454  28,840 
additions  78  1,915  3,110  5,103 
Disposals / reclassification  (2,218)  (92)  (25)  (2,335)
Depreciation  (799)  (1,690)  (987)  (3,476)
currency exchange differences  (825)  (169)  (277)  (1,271)
Closing net book value  17,595  4,991  4,275  26,861 

At 31 December 2013  
cost  21,036  18,599  7,459  47,094 
accumulated depreciation  (3,441)  (13,608)  (3,184)  (20,233)
net book amount  17,595  4,991  4,275  26,861 

The increase in fixtures and fittings is due to improvements of the new premises in cypress, usa. The decrease in land and building is the consequence of the reclas-
sification to assets held for sale of some buildings in the us and germany after the decision to sell unoccupied premises taken in June 2013. The sale is expected to 
happen within 12 months. 

in accordance with ifrs 5, the assets held for sale were aligned to their fair value less costs to sell of eur 2,213. This is a non-recurring fair value based on an indi-
pendent valuation of the land and buildings was performed by valuers to determine the fair value of the land and buildings as at 31 December 2013 which has been 
measured using observable inputs (level 2), being the prices for recent sales of similar land and buildings in close proximity adjusted for differences in key attributes 
such as property size. The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell, recognised to profit and loss, was null.
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noTE 16. InTAnGIBlE ASSETS

 EUR 000’s
 Goodwill  Patents & 

trademarks 
R&D 

and other
 Total 

year ended 31 December 2012
opening net book value  61,930  4,175  274  66,379 
additions  -  182  2,217  2,399 
Disposals  - -  (28)  (28)
amortisation  -  (468)  (323)  (791)
currency exchange differences  (284)  23  11  (250)
Closing net book value  61,646  3,912  2,151  67,709 

At 31 December 2012
cost  61,646  7,101  3,535  72,282 
accumulated amortisation  -  (3,189)  (1,384)  (4,573)
net book amount  61,646  3,912  2,151  67,709 

year ended 31 December 2013
opening net book value  61,646  3,912  2,151  67,709 
additions  -  22  759  781 
Disposals  -  -  -  - 
amortisation  -  (497)  (548)  (1,045)
currency exchange differences  (1,167)  (26)  (1)  (1,194)
Closing net book value  60,479  3,411  2,361  66,251 

At 31 December 2013
cost  60,479  7,080  4,174  71,733 
accumulated amortisation  -  (3,669)  (1,813)  (5,482)
net book amount  60,479  3,411  2,361  66,251 

The impairment of the goodwill balance has been considered in note 4.

noTE 17. non-CURREnT fInAnCIAl ASSETS
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
financial receivables  18  113 
financial assets at fair value  40  40 
Total  57  153 

The financial receivables include interest bearing loans of which eur 18 thousands is due from employees. 

noTE 18. DEfERRED TAX ASSETS
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months  3,666  3,053 
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months  9,835  4,041 
Closing balance  13,501  7,094 

 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
provisions for warranty, inventory, doubtful accounts and others 2,986 1,177
losses carried forward 7,877 3,063
Depreciation and amortization 269 295
unrealized exchange differences 7 -
accrued expenses not currently deductible 466 666
Mark-to-market on derivatives 16 24
others 1,880 1,869
Total 13,501 7,094

The deferred tax assets arose as a consequence of the recognition of timing differences on provisions relative to doubtful accounts, slow moving inventories and 
warranties, which are not tax deductible currently and become deductible for tax purposes when utilized, as well as to tax losses. The main increase is due to 
deferred tax assets recognised on losses carried forward generated in the us, germany and new Zealand. They expire in 20 years in the us and never expire in 
germany and new Zealand.
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noTE 19. loAnS AnD BoRRowInGS
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
bank overdrafts  -  (1,829)
credit facility current portion (2,000)  (2,000)
other current financial liabilities (2,654)  (911)
credit facility non-current portion (41,626)  (25,500)
other non-current financial liabilities (4,298)  (5,086)
unamortized issuance costs 571  498 
Total  (50,007)  (34,828)

During the year, the group reimbursed eur 2,000 thousands of the syndicated credit facility.

positive mark-to-market on derivatives for eur 27 thousands is included in other non-current liabilities. financial leasing liabilities for eur 47 thousands are 
included in other current liabilities and eur 59 thousands in other non-current liabilities.

The carrying amount of overdrafts, short term and long term debt is assumed to approximate the fair value.

 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
bank overdrafts - 1.67%
short term debt 1.85% 2.50%
long term debt 1.66% 1.97%
Interest bearing liabilities 1.68% 2.00%

The average cost of the interest bearing liabilities at the end of 2013 was lower compared to the previous year because of the reduced base rate.

noTE 20. TRADE PAyABlES
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
Trade payables  (23,517)  (28,559)
advances from customers  (8,009)  (8,414)
Total  (31,526)  (36,973)

noTE 21. TAX lIABIlITIES
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
Tax liabilities (1,219) (4,010)
vaT payable (1,506) (1,258)
Total (2,724) (5,269)

noTE 22. oThER CURREnT lIABIlITIES
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
employee entitlements (7,016) (8,074)
accrued expenses and other  (4,818)  (6,377)
Total (11,834) (14,450)

noTE 23. DEfERRED TAX lIABIlITIES
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
Depreciations and amortizations (3,103)  (3,048)
unrealized exchange differences (6)  (8)
actuarial pension scheme (9)  (21)
local Tax requirements (988)  (1,118)
financial leasing -  (2)
others (192)  (148)
Total (4,298)  (4,345)
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noTE 24. PRoVISIon foR RISkS AnD ChARGES 
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
provision for pension  (2,015)  (1,909)
provision for warranty  (4,248)  (2,227)
provision for litigation  (10)  (189)
provision for restructuring  (82)  (940)
provision for taxation  (622)  (478)
other provision  (2,798)  (1,402)
Total  (9,775)  (7,146)

 EUR 000’s Dec 31, 2012 Recorded Used Reversed not used Exchange Diff Dec 31, 2013
provision for pension            (1,909)             (208) 74  -               28        (2,015)
provision for warranty            (2,227)            (3,758) 1,407 181              149        (4,248)
provision for litigation             (189) (10) 188 -                1           (10)
provision for restructuring             (940)                - 678 180 -           (82)
provision for taxation             (478)             (170) 5 -               21          (622)
other provision            (1,402)            (1,920) 408 -              116        (2,798)
Total           (7,146)           (6,066) 2,760 361              315        (9,775)

provision for pension refers to compensation payable to employees upon termination of employment for any reason. a major part of this provision, in the normal 
course of events, is long term in nature. The warranty provision reflects historic experience of the cost to repair or replace defective products, as well as certain 
information regarding product failure experienced during production, installation or testing of products. provision for restructuring includes severance payments 
and other expenses related to the actions taken in germany to streamline production capacity and tailor our product range to reflect shifts in some markets. other 
provision includes also provisions for onerous contracts.

The majority of the provisions are estimated to be non current.

noTE 25. PEnSIon PlAn
The group operates defined benefit pension plans in swiss subsidiaries, cavotec sa and cavotec (swiss) sa, via the employee benefits foundation and are 
affiliated with the swiss life collective bvg foundation based in Zurich. This pension solution fully reinsures also the risks of disability, death and longevity. 
swiss life invests the vested pension capital and provides a 100% capital and interest guarantee. 
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
present value of defined benefit obligation 1,384 1,106
fair value of plan assets 996 766
Deficit of funded plans 388 340
present value of unfunded obligations - -
unrecognised past service cost - -
liability in the balance sheet 388 340

actuarial losses recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income in the period are eur 43 thousands, resulting from an eur 48 thousands increase 
of the liabilities net of deferred tax assets of eur 5 thousands.

The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows: 
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012

At 1 january 2013  (1,106)  (854)
service cost employer  (121)  (133)
ordinary contributions paid by employees  (112)  (101) 
interest cost  (19)  (19) 
contributions paid by plan participants  (37) -
benefits paid 32 29
actuarial (gains)/losses  (39)  (22) 
exchange differences 19 (6)
At 31 December 2013  (1,384)  (1,106)

actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -

actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (29) 59
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The movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year is as follows: 
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012

At 1 january  766  553 
expected return on assets  13 14
ordinary contributions paid by employer  112  101 
ordinary contributions paid by employees  112  101 
contributions paid by plan participants  37  - 
interest cost  -   -  
benefits paid (32) (29)
return on plan assets excl. interest income  -  22 
exchange differences (12) 4 
At 31 December  996  766 

The amounts recognised in the income statements are as follows: 

service cost employer  121  133 
interest cost  19  19 
expected return on assets (13) (14) 
Total  127  138 

The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows: 
2013 2012

price inflation 1.00% 1.00%
Discount rate, end of period 2.00% 1.75%
salary increase, end of period 1.50% 1.00%
increase in pension, end of period 0.00% 0.00%
retirement age M65/f64 M65/f64
Demographic assumptions bvg 2010 gT bvg 2010 gT

assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience.
2013 2012

Mortality rates bvg 2010 gT bvg 2010 gT
Disability rates bvg 2010 bvg 2010
Turnover rates bvg 2010 bvg 2010
early retirement age 100% M65/f64 100% M65/f64
capital option 40% 40%

plan assets are comprised as follows:
 in % 2013 2012
fixed-interest, cash and cash equivalents, time deposits 78.50% 78.38%
Mortgages and other claims on nominal value 6.89% 7.00%
equities and units in investment funds 0.28% 1.02%
private equity and hedge funds 0.16% 0.48%
investment in participations and associated companies 0.67% 0.81%
real estate 12.37% 11.26%
other investments 1.13% 1.05%
Total 100% 100%

The expected return on plan assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment policy.

The sensitivity analysis was performed by recalculating the Defined benefit obligation and service cost with the following parameters:
 2013 DBo Service Cost
Discount rate +0.5%        1,313              236 
Discount rate -0.5%               1,465                          263 
   
salary increase +0.5%               1,401                          255 
salary increase -0.5%               1,369                          248 
   
life expectancy +1 year               1,405                          255 
life expectancy -1 year               1,364                          248 

notes to the financial Statements
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noTE 26. ShARE CAPITAl
The table below set forth the changes occurred in the share capital of the group.
 EUR 000’s no of shares (fully paid) Share capital 

Balance at 1 january 2013  71,397,220  (89,386)
capital reduction  2,921 
Balance at 31 December 2013 71,397,220  (86,464)

The annual general Meeting held on 23 april, 2013 approved the reduction of the nominal value of the registered shares from chf 1.53 to chf 1.48.
 

noTE 27. oThER RESERVES
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
currency translation reserves  2,803  (2,896)
share premium reserve  (1,751)  (1,751)
own shares reserve  78  80 
actuarial reserve  318  275 
Total  1,448  (4,292)

The currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into euro. The 
value of the currency reserve decreased during the year due to the general strengthening of the euro against the currencies of the countries where the group operates.

The share premium reserve was created following the contribution agreement dated 3 october 2011 between cavotec sa and the former shareholders of cavotec Msl.

The own shares reserve was created in 2011 when cavotec sa bought back its shares from the former parent company cavotec Msl.

noTE 28. EARnInGS PER ShARE
both the basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated using the net results attributable to shareholders of cavotec sa as the numerator.
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012

profit for the year  10,453  12,192 

attributable to:
equity holders of the group  10,494  12,319 
non-controlling interest  (41)  (127)
Total  10,453  12,192 

weighted-average number of shares outstanding  71,332,700  71,332,700 

basic and diluted earnings per share attributed to the equity holders of the group  0.147  0.173 

There are no instruments in place to dilute the current shares. Therefore basic and diluted shares are the same.

noTE 29. SEGMEnT InfoRMATIon
operating segments have been determined on the basis of the group management structure in place and on the management information and reports received 
and used by the coDM to make strategic and management decisions.

The group organisation is based on geographic regions and each region is headed by a regional Manager. The principal regional groupings which constitute 
operating segments are:

americas: This region includes the us, canada, Mexico, central and south america 
europe & africa: This region includes all of europe, including russia, and africa
Middle east & india: This region includes egypt, gulf states, india, lebanon, oman, saudi arabia, Turkey, and the united arab emirates 
far east: This region includes china, hong Kong, Japan and south Korea
australasia and south east asia: This region includes south east asia including singapore, australia and new Zealand
hQ: This segment includes the parent, the sub-holdings and the service companies
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while the primary focus of the coDM in managing the business is directed at geographic regions, attention is also directed at the level of product penetration and 
third party revenues generated in the various regions for the various product groupings. Third party revenues, by product grouping, for each operating segment 
are summarised later in this note.

information by operating segment for the year ended 31 December, 2013 for each reportable segment is summarised below:

 year ended 31 December, 2013
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe &
Africa

Middle East
& India

far East Australasia
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

Total

revenue from sales of goods  52,042  175,932  30,844  47,750  21,087  -  (99,951)  227,704 
other income  2,160  6,598  (40)  4  4,918  1,507  (9,255)  5,892 
operating expenses before 
depreciation and amortisation  (62,667)

 
(166,639)

 
(29,731)  (42,291)  (25,488)  (1,968)  110,215  (218,569)

Gross operating Result  (8,465)  15,891  1,073  5,463  517  (461)  1,009  15,027 

information by operating segment for the year ended 31 December, 2012 for each reportable segment is summarised below:

 year ended 31 December, 2012
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe &
Africa

Middle East
& India

far East Australasia
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

Total

revenue from sales of goods  40,442  168,912  24,215  30,477  37,481 -  (81,455)  220,072 
other income  663  6,625  726  164  571  1,305  (5,243)  4,810 
operating expenses before 
depreciation and amortisation  (42,278)

 
(156,162)  (24,844)  (27,720)  (35,201)  (1,693)  84,751 

 
(203,147)

Gross operating Result  (1,173)  19,375  97  2,921  2,851  (388)  (1,947)  21,736 

The coDM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on adjusted gross operating result. This measurement basis excludes the effects of non-
recurring expenditure from operating segments such as restructuring costs, legal expenses and goodwill impairments when the impairment is the result of an 
isolated non-recurring event.    

a reconciliation of adjusted gross operating result to profit before income tax is provided as follows:

 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
gross operating result for reportable segments  14,018  23,684
inter-group elimination  1,009  (1,947)
Depreciation  (3,476)  (2,968)
amortisation  (1,045)  (791)
financial costs - net  (1,566)  (1,741)
Profit before income tax  8,940  16,237 

 Assets at 31 December 2013
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe & 
Africa

Middle East
& India

far East Australasia 
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

Total

Total current assets  24,742  68,643  18,969  23,180  21,062  55,228 (100,882)  110,941 
intangible assets  23,933  17,199  -    -    24,640  479  -    66,251 
Total non-current assets  13,306  22,080  2,620  992  1,604 5,859 (4,016)  42,445 
Total assets  61,981  107,922  21,589  24,172  47,306  61,566  (104,899)  219,637 

 Assets at 31 December 2012
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe & 
Africa

Middle East
& India

far East Australasia 
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

Total

Total current assets  20,267  72,696  20,623  18,090  24,723  23,734  (75,550)  104,583 
intangible assets  24,925  17,803  -  17  24,964  -  -  67,709 
Total non-current assets  5,823  24,878  2,953  945  1,407  10,058  (7,631)  38,433 
Total assets  51,015  115,377  23,576  19,052  51,094  33,792  (83,181)  210,725 

notes to the financial Statements
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reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as follows:

 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
segment assets for reportable segments  324,536  293,906 
inter-group elimination  (104,899)  (83,181)
Total assets  219,637  210,725 

The amounts provided to the coDM with respect to total liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with that of the financial statements. These liabilities are 
allocated based on the operations of the segment. The group’s interest-bearing liabilities are not considered to be segment liabilities but rather are managed by 
the treasury function.

 liabilities at 31 December 2013
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe & 
Africa

Middle East
& India

far East Australasia 
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

Total

Total current liabilities  (53,768)  (58,983)  (9,280)  (12,089)  (4,257)  (7,339)  94,978  (50,738)
Total non-current liabilities  (6,432)  (14,201)  (942)  (773)  (1,515)  (41,754)  5,487  (60,130)
Total liabilities  (60,200)  (73,184)  (10,222)  (12,862)  (5,772)  (49,093)  100,465  (110,868)

 liabilities at 31 December 2012
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe & 
Africa

Middle East
& India

far East Australasia 
SE Asia

hQ Inter-Group
elimination

Total

Total current liabilities  (40,474)  (55,744)  (11,684)  (10,234)  (6,522)  (6,240)  69,466  (61,432)
Total non-current liabilities  (3,959)  (19,713)  (901)  (756)  (1,239)  (25,479)  9,583  (42,464)
Total liabilities  (44,433)  (75,457)  (12,585)  (10,990)  (7,761)  (31,719)  79,049  (103,896)

reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total liabilities as follows:

 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
segment liabilities for reportable segments  (211,333)  (182,945)
inter-group elimination  100,465  79,049 
Total liabilities  (110,868)  (103,896)

Third party revenues for each operating segment analysed by significant product grouping is summarised below:

 year ended 31 December 2013
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe &
Africa

Middle East
& India

far East Australasia
SE Asia

Total

ports & Maritime  13,313  34,919  15,047  27,922  5,827  97,028 
airports  23,165  17,729  11,968  6,769  1,169  60,800 
Mining & Tunnelling  2,938  17,022  97  3,950  5,302  29,309 
general industry  3,405  25,457  3,714  4,336  3,655  40,567 
Total  42,821  95,127  30,826  42,977  15,953  227,704 

 year ended 31 December 2012
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe &
Africa

Middle East
& India

far East Australasia
SE Asia

Total

ports & Maritime  10,920  31,497  6,275  16,965  15,563  81,220 
airports  19,485  22,466  11,229  3,961  551  57,692 
Mining & Tunnelling  2,175  21,570  65  4,033  8,675  36,518 
general industry  4,734  25,661  6,636  4,243  3,368  44,642 
Total  37,314  101,194  24,205  29,202  28,157  220,072 

The consolidated revenues of the group are generated principally outside of switzerland, where the company is domiciled, and operations in switzerland are 
relatively insignificant. Due to the nature of the business, no single country represents a significant percentage of group revenues.
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on 1 January 2014, cavotec’s new organization came into effect. The responsibility of south east asia has now been moved under far east while africa is now 
under Middle east and india. a pro forma summary of 2013 reflecting these changes is set out below:

 year ended 31 December, 2013
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe Middle East
Africa & India

far East oceania hQ Inter-Group
elimination

Total

revenue from sales of goods  52,042  174,036  32,740  51,198  17,639  -  (99,951)  227,704 
other income  2,160  6,630  (71)  37  4,885  1,507  (9,255)  5,892 
operating expenses before 
depreciation and amortisation  (62,668)  (164,829)  (31,541)  (45,655)  (22,124)  (1,968)  110,216  (218,569)
Gross operating Result  (8,465)  15,837  1,127  5,580  400  (461)  1,011  15,027 

 Assets at 31 December 2013
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe Middle East
Africa & India

far East oceania hQ Inter-Group
elimination

Total

Total current assets  24,742  67,650  19,962  25,189  19,053 55,228 (100,882)  110,941 
intangible assets  23,933  17,199  -  -  24,640  479  -  66,251 
Total non-current assets  13,307  22,058  2,641  1,012  1,584 5,859 (4,016)  42,445 
Total assets  61,981  106,907  22,603  26,201  45,277  61,566  (104,897)  219,637 

 liabilities at 31 December 2013
 EUR 000’s

Americas Europe Middle East
Africa & India

far East oceania hQ Inter-Group
elimination

Total

Total current liabilities  (53,768)  (58,545)  (9,717)  (12,753)  (3,592)  (7,339)  94,978  (50,738)
Total non-current liabilities  (6,432)  (14,195)  (947)  (773)  (1,515)  (41,754)  5,486  (60,130)
Total liabilities  (60,200)  (72,741)  (10,665)  (13,527)  (5,107)  (49,093)  100,465  (110,868)

noTE 30. RElATED PARTy DISCloSURE 
cavotec sa is the legal parent of the group. Details of cavotec sa subsidiaries and associates can be found in note 3.

The group’s key management personnel comprises the chief executive officer and the members of executive Management committee (eMc), their total remu-
neration including salary and other short term benefits amounted to a total of eur 4,582 thousands (2012: 4,199 thousands). please refer to page 92 for the 
remuneration of the board members and page 93 for the description of the long-term incentive plan. 

 year ended 31 December 2013

 EUR 000’s
Short-term employee 

benefits
Post-employment 

benefits
other long-term 

benefits
Share-based 

payment
Total

chief executive officer 718 25 - - 743

executive Management 3,635 205 - - 3,839

Total remuneration 4,353 230 - - 4,582

 year ended 31 December 2012

 EUR 000’s
Short-term employee 

benefits
Post-employment 

benefits
other long-term 

benefits
Share-based 

payment
Total

chief executive officer 587 25 - - 612

executive Management 3,411 176 - - 3,587

Total remuneration 3,998 201 - - 4,199

The following table summarizes the group’s transactions with its related parties, which are controlled or influenced by some board members:

 EUR 000’s  Revenues Costs
 Company  Country  Receivables  Payables  Guarantees  Goods 

and services 
 others  Goods 

and services 
 others 

atomium culture belgium - - - - - - (13)
iva sweden - - - - - - (18)
port equipment Manufacturing 
association(peMa) belgium - - - - - - (2)
soliden sagl switzerland - - - - - (167) -
swedish swiss chamber of 
commerce switzerland - - - - - - (18)
vr group oy      finland - - - 16 - - -
Subtotal - -  -   16  -   (167) (51)
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noTE 31. REMUnERATIon of AUDIToRS
During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the entity, its related practices and non-related audit firms.

 EUR 000’s 2013 2012

Audit services
pricewaterhousecoopers  578  631 
other auditor firms  127  140 
Total  705  771 

other assurance services:

Taxation
pricewaterhousecoopers  115  91 
other auditor firms  7  4 
Total  122  95 

other assurance services*
pricewaterhousecoopers  59  126 
other auditor firms  5  4 
Total  64  130 

Total  186  225 

* other assurance services include legal services, transfer pricing and eu vaT consultancy fees.

noTE 32. lEGAl RISkS
as a global company with a diverse business portfolio, the group is exposed to numerous legal risks, particularly in the areas of product liability, competition and 
tax assessments. 

The outcome of any current or future proceedings cannot be predicted. it is therefore possible that legal or regulatory judgments or future settlements could give 
rise to expenses that are not covered, or not fully covered, by insurers’ compensation payments and could significantly affect our revenues and earnings.
legal proceedings currently considered to involve material risks are outlined below. 

Mike Colaco litigation
following an internal investigation at cavotec’s us-based ineT operations in september 2012, Mike colaco was suspended from all management positions in 
cavotec ineT and other us affiliates of the cavotec. colaco subsequently filed a lawsuit against cavotec. cavotec denies any wrongdoing and has filed a coun-
tersuit against colaco and others. The lawsuit is moving forward and the discovery process is currently approaching its conclusion. The start of the trial has been 
postponed to 27 october 2014. The assessment of the board of Directors is that the claims made by colaco are without substantial basis or foundation and are 
not likely to result in any material financial exposure to cavotec, which has not already been provided for in the accounts. as the litigation is on-going the group 
withholds from further comment at this time.

Meyerinck litigation
During the year all the claims brought by former cavotec Meyerinck employees have been resolved without additional costs for the group in excess of what was 
already provisioned in 2013.

noTE 33. ConTInGEnCIES 
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
bonds  20,763  11,199 
financial guarantees  769  1,385 
other guarantees  601  1,359 
Total  22,133 13,943

The items listed under contingencies are mainly performance bonds to customers in hong Kong, Middle east, russia and the us, of which eur 16,915 will expire 
within one year. based on historical experience there isn’t any expectation to have significant cash outflow from these bonds.
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noTE 34. CoMMITMEnTS  
The following details commitments associated with cavotec sa & subsidiaries.

 EUR 000’s 2013 2012

Rental commitments
within one year  3,105  2,944 
later than one, not later than two years  2,259  1,712 
later than two, not later than five years  4,782  2,482 
later than five years  5,224  180 
Total  15,370  7,318 

The group leases various properties under non-cancellable lease agreements. These lease terms are generally between one and seven years.

operating lease commitments
within one year  316  805 
later than one, not later than two years  163  609 
later than two, not later than five years  114  355 
later than five years  -  6 
Total  593  1,775 

Capital commitments
within one year  -  8 
later than one, not later than two years  -  1 
Total commitments  -  9 

noTE 35. SECURITIES AnD CollATERAlS
real estate related loans amounting to eur 4,839 thousands at 31 December, 2013 (2012: 5,608) are secured by mortgages on land and buildings in italy, 
germany, norway, sweden and france. The decrease of the year is due to the repayment of the current portion of the loans.

noTE 36. SUBSEQUEnT EVEnTS
There have been no events subsequent to the balance sheet date which require adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements or notes.

notes to the financial Statements
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The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The group’s overall 
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the group. 

The board sets the policy for the group’s centralised treasury operation and its activities are subject to a set of controls commensurate with the magnitude of the 
borrowings and investments and group wide exposures under its management. The treasury function’s primary role is to manage liquidity, funding, investments and 
counterparty credit risk arising with financial institutions. it also manages the group’s market risk exposures, including risks arising from volatility in currency and interest 
rates. The treasury function is not a profit centre and the objective is to manage risk at optimum cost.

The financial risk management of exposures arising from trading related financial instruments, primarily trade receivables and trade payables, is managed at the 
group and regional level through a series of set policies and procedures. regional managers apply these policies and procedures and perform review processes. 
The group uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity analyses in the case of interest rate 
risk and currency risk while ageing analyses of receivables is used to assess credit risk.

MARkET RISk 
Currency risk
The group generally offers customers the possibility to pay in their own currencies through the global sales organization. as a result, the group is continuously 
exposed to currency risks in accounts receivables denominated in foreign currency and in future sales to foreign customers. This risk is mitigated by the fact that 
the group’s major competitors are also mainly located in euro jurisdictions and, consequently, it is possible to adjust sales prices to negate the adverse effect of 
the change. This issue of international pricing is under constant attention at the highest levels of management.

as the group trades across many countries, purchasing and selling in various currencies, there is a natural hedge within the group’s overall activities. an area of 
potential risk arises from the fact that only 24.5% (24.1%) of the group’s revenues are denominated in euro as the major manufacturing units, except for the 
operations of cavotec ineT, Dabico and Micro-control norway, are located in euro currency based jurisdictions and furthermore significant sales are also made in 
territories where the us dollar historically has had a significant influence (apart from the us, this would include the uae, china, hong Kong and singapore amount-
ing to 48.0% of the group’s total sales from 39.6% in 2012).

The exchange rates listed here below are used to prepare the financial statements:

Currency Average rate year end rate
aeD 0.20495 0.19812
ars 0.13723 0.11124
auD 0.72585 0.64838
brl 0.34859 0.30697
caD 0.73080 0.68162
chf 0.81231 0.81460
DKK 0.13409 0.13406
eur 1.00000 1.00000
gbp 1.17750 1.19947
hKD 0.09707 0.09352
inr 0.01283 0.01171

Krw 0.00069 0.00069
noK 0.12809 0.11957
nZD 0.61707 0.59659
rMb 0.12248 0.11977
rub 0.02362 0.02206
seK 0.11559 0.11288
sgD 0.60173 0.57425
usD 0.75294 0.72511
Zar 0.07792 0.06865

at 31 December 2013, had the euro weakened/strengthened by 10% against foreign currencies to which the group is exposed, with all other variables held con-
stant, profit for the year and equity would have been eur 3,666 thousands higher/lower (2012: 2,120 thousands). This is mainly as a result of foreign exchange 
gains/losses on translation of financial assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the euro and in respect of operations in non-euro jurisdictions 
for financial assets and liabilities not in their local currency.

a sensitivity of 10% has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the current level of exchange rates and the volatility observed both on an historical 
basis and market expectations for future moves.

risK ManageMenT
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2013 2012
EUR 000’s EUR -10% EUR +10% EUR -10% EUR +10% 

receivables  48  (48)  94  (94)
payables  (64)  64  (153)  153 
financial assets  3,682  (3,682)  2,179  (2,179)
financial liabilities  -    -    -    -   
Total increase / (decrease)  3,666  (3,666)  2,120  (2,120)

financial assets and financial liabilities held at year end are held in the following currencies:
2013 2012

 EUR 000’s financial Assets financial liabilities financial Assets financial liabilities
eur  6,928  (49,171)  552  (34,433)
usD  1,415  -    6,173  -   
rMb  951  -    562  -   
aeD  841  -    531  -   
gbp  91  -    268  -   
seK  407  (665)  239  -   
noK  696  (60)  512  (204)
auD  287  (106)  196  (184)
chf  134  -    14  -   
hKD  418  -    24  -   
other  1,760  (5)  1,240  (7)
Total  13,928  (50,007)  10,313  (34,828)

other financial assets totalling eur 67 thousands and financial liabilities totalling eur 58 thousands were excluded from the sensitivity analysis as these were in 
the same currency used by the relevant entity in its reporting.

The carrying amounts of the group’s trade receivables and trade payables are held in the following currencies:
2013 2012

 EUR 000’s Receivables Payables Receivables Payables
eur  16,314  (18,393)  19,902  (21,329)
usD  10,808  (5,405)  11,163  (4,354)
rMb  6,387  (1,460)  5,973  (1,366)
aeD  904  (1,334)  571  (3,054)
gbp  915  (775)  1,637  (563)
seK  378  (368)  316  (439)
noK  2,447  (658)  2,132  (1,175)
auD  3,923  (1,127)  4,805  (1,260)
chf  -    (279)  -    (255)
hKD  2,265  (730)  1,167  (910)
other  4,364  (997)  2,917  (2,268)
Total  48,705  (31,526)  50,583  (36,973)

other non-current assets totalling eur 2,025 thousands (2012: 2,345) were excluded from the sensitivity analysis as these were in the same currency used by 
the relevant entity in its reporting.

Interest rate risk
interest rate risk management is aimed at balancing the structure of the debt, minimizing borrowing costs over time and limiting the volatility of results. The group 
is party to fixed interest rate loan agreements in the normal course of business in order to eliminate the exposure to increases in interest rates in the future in 
accordance with the group’s financial risk management policy approved by the board. The amount of floating rate debt is the main factor that could impact the 
statement of comprehensive income in the event of an increase in market rates. at 31 December, 2013 90% of the net Debt was floating rate (2012: 83%).

The impact of a 1% increase/decrease in interest rates will result in a decrease/increase of interest expenses for the year of eur 449 thousands (2012: 288 thousands).

Trade payables, trade receivables and other financial instruments do not present a material exposure to interest rate volatility.

Fair value estimation
financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the consolidated financial statements are categorised based upon the level of judgement associated with 
the inputs used to measure their fair value. There are three hierarchical levels, based on an increasing amount of subjectivity associated with the inputs to derive 
fair valuation for these assets and liabilities, which are as follows:
• Level 1: Determination of fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
• Level 2: Determination of fair value based on inputs other than the quoted prices of Level 1 but which are directly or indirectly observable
• Level 3: Determination of fair value based on valuation models with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
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The following table presents the group’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value by valuation method including those measured at amortized cost or 
at cost at 31 December, 2013: 

 
 EUR 000’s

level 1 level 2 level 3 Valued at amortized 
cost

Total

Assets
current financial assets 9 - - -  9 
non-current financial assets - - 40 -  40 
long-term loans - - -  18  18 
Total assets  9 - 40  18  67 

liabilities
current trading derivatives -  -   - -  -   
non-current trading derivatives -  (58) - -  (58)
Total liabilities -  (58) - -  (58)

There is no change in the valuation of level 3 assets.

see note 15 for disclusures on the disposal groups held for sale that are measured at fair value.

CREDIT RISk 
credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and 
committed transactions and it is managed on a group basis. a fundamental tenet of the group’s policy of managing credit risk is customer selectivity. The group has 
a large number of customers in its various geographies and therefore there is no concentration of credit. The group’s largest customers are prominent international 
companies and, while none of these represent a material percentage of total sales, outstanding receivables from these are regularly monitored and contained within 
reasonable limits. large value sales require customers to pay a deposit or pay in advance, and are authorised by the regional Managers or the ceo. The group 
has a credit policy which is used to manage this credit exposure ensuring minimal credit losses in past years.

after the global turmoil in the international markets, the company has introduced stringent practices to evaluate exposure to doubtful debts; the group requires 
that provisions be recorded not only to cover exposure relative to specific accounts in difficulty but also for accounts receivables balances which are past due for
periods in excess of normal trading terms. as at 31 December, 2013 total past due trade receivables were higher than at the end of 2012 due to delay in the 
collection in china, Middle east and us. The ageing of the trade receivables is as follows:

 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
overdue up to 30 days  12,923  11,003 
overdue up to 30 and 60 days  1,926  3,826 
overdue up to 60 and 90 days  4,708  3,415 
overdue up to 90 and 120 days  1,454  1,497 
overdue up to 120 and 150 days  205  1,024 
overdue more than 150 days  9,773  3,341 
Total  30,989  24,106 

at 31 December, 2013 eur 3,510 thousands (2012: 3,786 thousands) has been provisioned against impaired financial receivables.

Provision for impaired financial receivables by operating segment
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
americas  (2,354)  (2,567)
europe & africa  (496)  (403)
Middle east & india  (406)  (399)
far east  (254)  (207)
australasia se asia  -    (210)
Total  (3,510)  (3,786)

nET DEBT
net Debt is defined as financial liabilities minus cash and cash equivalents and current financial assets.
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
cash and cash equivalents  13,928  10,313 
current financial assets  9  5 
bank overdraft  -    (1,829)
short-term debt  (4,654)  (2,911)
long-term debt  (45,353)  (30,088)
Total  (36,070)  (24,511)
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lIQUIDITy RISk
liquidity risk is managed by the group Treasury unit, which ensures adequate coverage of cash needs by entering into short, medium and long-term financial 
instruments to support operational and other funding requirements. The board reviews and approves the maximum long-term funding of the group and on an on-
going basis considers any related matters on at least an annual basis. short and medium-term requirements are regularly reviewed and managed by the centralised 
treasury operation within the parameters set by the board. 

The group’s liquidity and funding management process includes projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets in relation thereto, monitoring 
balance sheet liquidity and maintaining a diverse range of funding sources and back-up facilities. The board reviews group forecasts, including cash flow forecasts, 
on a quarterly basis. The centralised treasury operation reviews cash flows more frequently to assess the short and medium-term requirements. These assessments 
ensure the group responds to possible future cash constraints in a timely manner. operating finance requirements of group companies are met, whenever possible, 
from the centralized treasury which is responsible for investing liquid asset surplus’s which are not immediately required by operating companies. 

in august 2011 the group renewed its eur 50.0 million syndicated loan facility agreement signed in 2009 and maturing in 2012. This agreement extends the maturity 
to august 2016 at improved pricing and includes an option to increase the facility up to eur 80 million. at the beginning of 2013, the group secured a eur 15.0 
million increase of the facility at the same conditions. after the amortizations, the facility is now available in two parts eur 6.0 million amortizing term loan (”facility a”) 
and eur 55.0 million revolving credit line (”facility b”). facility a was fully drawn at the end of 2013, drawings of facility b amounted to eur 49.1 million of which eur 
37.6 million on the revolving credit facility itself and eur 5.5 million on the ancillary credit line for guarantees. see note 19 for additional information. 

The syndicated loan facility bears interest for each interest period at a rate per annum equal to euribor plus a variable margin which will be adjusted every quarter
to reflect any changes in the ratio of net debt to consolidated ebiTDa as determined on a rolling basis, with a minimum margin of 1.00% per annum. The loans are
subject to certain restrictive covenants, including, but not limited to, additional borrowing, certain financial ratios, limitations on acquisitions and disposals of assets.
if the financial covenants are not met and their breach is not remedied within a certain period or the lenders do not waive the covenants, there may grounds for
termination under the conditions of the credit facility. The group is in compliance with all existing loan covenants as of December 31, 2013.

as of December 31, 2013, the group’s total available credit facilities, which related to the above mentioned syndicated loan facility agreement and to other credit facilities 
with local banks, amounted to eur 70.2 million, of which eur 56.1 million was utilised. The table below analyses the group’s financial liabilities, excluding trade payables, 
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date against the cash and cash equivalent balances.

  2013 2012
 EUR 000’s less than 1 year 1 and 5 years less than 1 year 1 and 5 years
bank overdrafts and short-term debt  (4,654) -  (4,740) -
long-term debt -  (45,353) -  (30,088)
Total  (4,654)  (45,353)  (4,740)  (30,088)
cash and cash equivalents  13,928 -  10,313 -

Credit facilities
 EUR 000’s Total Used
bank overdrafts (3,128)  -   
current financial liabilities (4,654)  (4,654)
non-current financial liabilities (62,399) (45,924)
Total utilization for cash  (70,181) (50,578)
guarantees  -   (5,500)
Total  (70,181) (56,078)

CAPITAl RISk MAnAGEMEnT
The group and the company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide 
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure that reduces the cost of capital. in order to maintain or adjust 
the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 
The group monitors capital on the basis of its debt to equity ratio calculated by comparing net Debt to Total equity. During 2013, the group’s strategy, which was 
unchanged, compared to previous years, was to maintain a debt to equity ratio of no more than 75%, consistent with the company’s financial covenant requirement 
under its long-term financing arrangements. in monitoring the level of indebtness, on-going attention is also given by management to the level of interest cover 
calculated as operating income divided by net financial costs and to the leverage ratio defined as net Debt divided by gross operating income (ebiTDa).

The debt equity ratios, interest cover and leverage ratio at 31 December, 2013 and 31 December, 2012 were as follows:
 EUR 000’s 2013 2012
Total interest bearing liabilities  (50,007)  (34,828)
cash and cash equivalents  13,928  10,313 
current financial assets 9 5
net debt  (36,070)  (24,511)
Total equity  (108,769)  (106,829)
Debt equity ratio 33.2% 22.9%
interest cover 8.6 14.2
leverage ratio 2.40 1.13
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PricewaterhouseCoopers SA, via della Posta 7, casella postale, CH-6901 Lugano, Switzerland
Telefono: +41 58 792 65 00, Fax: +41 58 792 65 10, www.pwc.ch
PricewaterhouseCoopers SA is a member of the global PricewaterhouseCoopers network of firms, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.

Report of the statutory auditor
to the General Meeting of
Cavotec SA
Lugano

Report of the statutory auditor on the consolidated financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the consolidated financial statements of Cavotec SA, which 
comprise the statement of comprehensive income, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash 
flow statement and notes (pages 54 to 85), for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Board of Directors’ responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
the requirements of Swiss law. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining 
an internal control system relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of 
Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards as well as 
the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the 
internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasona-
bleness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidat-
ed financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appro-
priate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers SA, via della Posta 7, casella postale, CH-6901 Lugano, Switzerland
Telefono: +41 58 792 65 00, Fax: +41 58 792 65 10, www.pwc.ch
PricewaterhouseCoopers SA is a member of the global PricewaterhouseCoopers network of firms, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.

Report of the statutory auditor
to the General Meeting of
Cavotec SA
Lugano

Report of the statutory auditor on the consolidated financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the consolidated financial statements of Cavotec SA, which 
comprise the statement of comprehensive income, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash 
flow statement and notes (pages 54 to 85), for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Board of Directors’ responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
the requirements of Swiss law. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining 
an internal control system relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of 
Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards as well as 
the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the 
internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasona-
bleness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidat-
ed financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appro-
priate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act 
(AOA) and independence (article 728 CO and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances 
incompatible with our independence. 

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm 
that an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers SA

Daniel Ketterer Efrem Dell'Era

Audit expert
Auditor in charge

Audit expert

Lugano, 18 March 2014
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sTaTuTory
financial sTaTeMenTs
for the period ended 31 December 2013

please note that all reported amounts in this report are in chf. 
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Chf 2013 2012
revenue and income  1,267,102  1,257,148 

employee benefit costs  (729,366)  (714,007)
external services  (986,541)  (1,162,079)
Travelling expenses  (43,392)  (56,687)
general expenses  (146,462)  (78,415)
operating Result  (638,659)  (754,040)

finance costs - net  (32,196)  (29,618)
foreign exchange - net  33,276  (759,114)
Result before income taxes  (637,579)  (1,542,771)

Taxes  (27,023)  (27,812)
Result for the period  (664,602)  (1,570,583)

CAVoTEC SA
Income statement

CAVoTEC SA
Balance Sheet

Assets
Chf

notes 2013 2012

Current assets
cash and cash equivalents  59,807  5,159 
Trade accounts receivable, group  697,780  687,614 
prepaid exp. and accrued income  3,784  3,170 
Tax assets  25,618  20,856 
other current receivables  -  385 
Total current assets  786,989  717,184 

non-current assets
investments in subsidiary companies 3  120,853,741  118,845,874 
own shares 5  95,490  98,716 
Total non-current assets  120,949,231  118,944,590 

Total assets  121,736,220  119,661,774 

liabilities 2013 2012

Current liabilities
bank overdrafts 10  (15,544,224)  (13,182,754)
current financial liabilities 10  (2,264,922) -
Trade accounts payable  (139,072)  (199,765)
accruals and deferred income  (106,517)  (107,329)
Tax provision  (12,074)  (18,836)
other liabilities  (7,570)  (33,766)
Total current liabilities  (18,074,379)  (13,542,450)

non-current liabilities
provision for translation reserve  (1,780,205) -
Total non-current liabilities  (1,780,205) -   

Total liabilities  (19,854,584)  (13,542,450)

Equity 2013 2012

share capital 4  (105,667,886)  (109,237,747)
legal reserves:
  - reserve for own shares 4,5  (95,490)  (98,716)
share premium reserve 4  (2,039,975)  (2,039,975)
prior year retained earnings 4  5,257,113  3,686,530 
result for the period 4  664,602  1,570,583 
Total equity  (101,881,636)  (106,119,324)

Total equity and liabilities  (121,736,220)  (119,661,774)

sTaTuTory financial sTaTeMenTs
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sTaTuTory financial sTaTeMenTs
CAVoTEC SA
notes to Statutory financial Statements

noTE 1. GEnERAl  
cavotec sa (the ”company”) is the ultimate parent company of the cavotec group.

cavotec is a global engineering group that manufactures power transmission, distribution and control technologies that form the link between fixed and mobile 
equipment in the ports & Maritime, airports, Mining & Tunnelling and general industry sectors. all engineering and most manufacturing of cavotec’s products and 
systems take place at nine specialised engineering centres of excellence in germany (three), sweden, norway, italy, the united states (two) and new Zealand. 
cavotec has fully owned sales companies spread across the world which monitor local markets and cooperate with cavotec’s centres of excellence. 

cavotec sa is listed on nasDaQ oMX in stockholm, sweden.

The consolidated financial statements are of overriding importance for the purpose of the economic and financial assessment of the company. The unconsolidated 
statutory financial statements of the company are prepared in accordance with swiss law, the code of obligations (sco), and serve as complementary information 
to the consolidated financial statements.

noTE 2. SUMMARy of SIGnIfICAnT ACCoUnTInG PolICIES
Exchange rate differences – The company keeps its accounting records in euro and translates them into swiss francs (chf) for statutory reporting purposes. 
The euro statutory financial statements have been translated into swiss francs as follows:
assets and liabilities      closing rate
own shares and shareholders’ equity    historical rate
income and expenses      average rate
Translation gains are deferred and translation losses are included in the determination of net income.
Current assets and liabilities – current assets and liabilities are recorded at cost less adjustments for impairment of value.
Financial assets – financial assets are recorded at acquisition cost less adjustments for impairment of value.
Own shares – own shares are valued at the lower of cost and realisable value at the balance sheet date. The reserve for the own shares included in shareholders’ 
equity corresponds to the historical purchase cost of the own shares.

noTE 3. InVESTMEnT In SUBSIDIARy CoMPAnIES
Company name Purpose Domicile ownership interest Curr. Share Capital
cavotec (swiss) sa services company switzerland 100% chf  200,000    
cavotec MoorMaster ltd holding & engineering new Zealand 100% nZD  10,000,000    
cavotec us holdings inc holding usa 100% usD  6,000,000    

noTE 4. ShAREholDERS’ EQUITy
Description Date Shares Share capital (Chf)
incorporation 14 June 2011 100,000 100,000
consolidation of shares - step 1 29 september 2011 100,006 100,006
consolidation of shares - step 2 3 october 2011 64,520 100,006
scheme of arrangement 3 october 2011 71,397,220 110,665,691
listing on nasDaQ oMX stockholm 19 october 2011 71,397,220 110,665,691
reduction of share capital 4 May 2012 71,397,220 109,237,747
reduction of share capital 23 april 2013  71,397,220     105,667,886    

cavotec sa was established by cavotec Msl in lugano, switzerland on 14 June 2011 with an initial share capital of chf 100,000 fully paid up and divided into 
100,000 registered shares. The shares’ par value was chf 1.00.

prior to the scheme of arrangement, cavotec sa’s outstanding shares were consolidated into 64,520 shares and the shares’ par value was increased to chf 
1.55. The consolidation process induced a share capital increase of chf 6.00.

cavotec sa, as of contribution agreement dated 3 october 2011, assumed from the shareholders in cavotec Msl, the option right in 71,332,700 registered 
shares of cavotec MoorMaster, for a total amount of chf 112,705,666 and accepted by the company for this amount. This capital increase was registered with 
the relevant swiss authority on 3 october 2011. chf 110,565,685 has been imputed on the share capital, whereas chf 2,139,981 as share premium reserve, 
for an equivalent to the contributor of 71,332,700 fully paid up registered shares with a par value of chf 1.55 each of the company.
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The agM held on 4 May, 2012 approved a reduction of the nominal value of the registered shares from chf 1.55 to chf 1.53. The nominal value reduction was 
used for the repayment to the shareholders. 

The agM held on 23 april, 2013 approved a reduction of the nominal value of the registered shares from chf 1.53 to chf 1.48. The nominal value reduction 
was used for the repayment to the shareholders. 

The share capital as of 31 December 2013 is divided into 71,397,220 shares at a par value chf 1.48 each.

 Chf Share Capital
legal Reserve

Share Premium 
Reserve

Prior year 
Result for
the period

Total 
Shareholder’s 

equity
Reserve for 
own shares

Retained 
Earnings

opening balance at january 1, 2013  109,237,747     98,716     2,039,975    (3,686,530) (1,570,583)  106,119,324    
reduction share capital (3,569,861) (3,226) - - - (3,573,087)
result of the period - - - - (664,602) (664,602)    
allocation prior year result - - - (1,570,583)  1,570,583     -      
Balance at December 31, 2013  105,667,886     95,490     2,039,975    (5,257,113) (664,602)  101,881,636    

The 2013 agM approved the creation of a contingent share capital of 713,972 shares, in connection with employees’ participation to 2013 long Term incentive 
plan (lTip).  The total amount of contingent shares refers to 2012 and 2013 long Term incentive plan (lTip). The authorized shares, approved by 2012 agM, will 
expire on 4 May 2014.   

Share capital as of December 31, 2013 no of registered shares Par value Total (Chf)
issued shares  71,397,220     chf 1.48  105,667,886    
contingent shares  1,427,944     chf 1.48  2,113,357    
authorized shares  14,279,444     chf 1.48  21,133,577    

noTE 5. own ShARES
The own shares held at 31 December were 64,520, equal to 0.09% if the total share capital. a reserve for own shares of chf 95,490 equal to 64,520 share 
at chf 1.48 has been established.  

noTE 6. SIGnIfICAnT ShAREholDERS
The end of the year and based on the available information, the shareholders with holdings in excess of 5% of the shares are:

 year ended 31 December 2013
 Shareholders number %
Michael colaco shareholder  7,703,844    10.8%
lars hellman (through nordea life & pension) founder  7,512,551    10.5%
stefan widegren & family* chairman & founder  7,254,264    10.2%
fabio cannavale (through nomina sa & other) board member  6,948,046    9.7%
Total  29,418,705    41.2%

 year ended 31 December 2012
 Shareholders number %
lars hellman (through nordea life & pension) founder 7,912,551 11.1%
stefan widegren & family* chairman & founder 7,754,264 10.9%
Michael colaco shareholder 7,703,844 10.8%
fabio cannavale (through nomina sa & other) board member 6,948,046 9.7%
Total 30,318,705 42.5%

* The amount includes the shares owned by Stefan Widegren, Lotten Widegren, Kristina Widegren and Thomas Widegren.



92

sTaTuTory financial sTaTeMenTs
CAVoTEC SA
notes to Statutory financial Statements

noTE 7. BoARD of DIRECToRS CoMPEnSATIon
in 2013, a total remuneration to the board members in cavotec sa was paid in aggregate of chf 2,236 thousands, whereof chf 766 thousands was allocated 
to the chairman of the board of Directors and chf 1,470 thousands in total, was allocated to the other members of the board of Directors (including the chief 
executive officer). Their remuneration can be found in the table below.

 year ended 31 December 2013
 Board of Directors
 Chf

 Board fees  Short-term employee 
benefits 

 Post-employment 
benefits 

 Consultancy  Total

 fabio cannavale 36,932 1,254 1,962                         -   40,148
 leena essén(1) 43,087 137,089 12,536                         -   192,712
 nicola gerber 36,932 1,255 1,964                         -   40,151
 christer granskog 49,242 745 1,725                         -   51,712
 lakshmi Khanna(2) 54,782 681 1,578 95,456 152,497
 erik lautmann  47,765 1,624 2,540 - 51,929
 Joe pope(3) 24,621 373 863                         -   25,857
 ottonel popesco(1)(4) 
 (chief executive officer) -   883,750 30,688

                        
 -   914,438

 stefan widegren(1)(5) (chairman) 141,572 418,544 - 206,000 766,116
 Total remuneration 434,933 1,445,315 53,856 301,456 2,235,560

(1) Their compensation includes variable remuneration relative 2012 paid in 2013.
(2) Lakshmi Khanna has provided consulting services to Cavotec International totalling CHF 95 thousands.
(3) Joe Pope didn’t stand for re-election at the 2013 AGM.
(4) Ottonel Popesco’s remuneration includes the remuneration of his wife.
(5) Stefan Widegren, through Soliden Sagl, has provided consulting services to the Group totaling CHF 206 thousands. His remuneration includes the health insurance for his wife.

 year ended 31 December 2012
 Board of Directors
 Chf

 Board fees  Short-term employee 
benefits 

 Post-employment 
benefits 

 Consultancy  Total

 fabio cannavale 31,337 1,753   3,009                         -   36,099
 leena essén  37,364 141,504 13,558                         -   192,426
 nicola gerber 31,337 1,402 2,406                         -   35,145
 christer granskog 43,390 1,647 3,009                         -   48,045
 lakshmi Khanna(1) 46,403 -   -   93,901 140,304
 erik lautmann(2) 40,377 1,806 3,100 12,023 57,306
 Joe pope 43,390 765 2,039                         -   46,195
 ottonel popesco(3) 
 (chief executive officer) -   707,204 30,354

                        
 -   737,558

 stefan widegren(4) (chairman) 126,554 351,317 - 203,000 680,872
 Total remuneration 400,153 1,207,398 57,475 308,924 1,973,950

(1) Lakshmi Khanna has provided consulting services to Cavotec International totalling CHF 94 thousands.
(2) Erik Lautmann, through Radela AB, has provided consulting services to Cavotec SA totalling CHF 13 thousands.
(3) Ottonel Popesco’s remuneration includes the remuneration of his wife.
(4) Stefan Widegren, through Soliden Sagl, has provided consulting services to the Group totaling CHF 203 thousands. His remuneration includes the remuneration of his wife.

in addition, the company reimburses the directors’ travel and incidental expenses incurred for attending board, committee and shareholder meetings and for other 
company business-related purposes.

noTE 8. EXECUTIVE MAnAGEMEnT CoMPEnSATIon  
The remuneration of the executive Management of cavotec sa was as follows:
 year ended 31 December 2013
 Chf  Short-term employee benefits  Post-employment benefits Total
 executive Management 1,553,022 65,652 1,618,674
 Total remuneration 1,553,022 65,652 1,618,674

 year ended 31 December 2012
 Chf  Short-term employee benefits  Post-employment benefits Total
 executive Management 1,324,075 63,095 1,387,170
 Total remuneration 1,324,075 63,095 1,387,170

The table above includes the remuneration of ottonel popesco equal to chf 914 thousands, of which chf 31 thousands for post-employment benefits.
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since 2012 the company has implemented on a yearly basis a long Term incentive plan (“lTip”) for selected employees of the group in the form of annually 
offered share matching plan. The purpose of the lTip is to provide selected key employees with an opportunity to become shareholders of cavotec. The plan 
is implemented, centrally administered and maintained by board of Directors and the remuneration committee is responsible for its structuring and operation.

a participant in the lTip (the “participant”) has the possibility, but is not obligated, to purchase shares at fair value in the stock-market (“co-investment shares”)
during a defined period for the respective plan. The maximum number of shares that can qualify as co-investment shares are determined by the board of Directors 
at its sole discretion, but is capped at 10 per cent of the participant’s annual base salary.

The co-investment shares purchased under the plan are subject to a holding period of approximately 3 years (the date when the holding period ends will be known 
as the “Matching Date”). The participant has full share ownership rights over the co-investment shares and they may be disposed of, sold, donated, pledged or 
transferred in any way during the holding period. The participant is, however, obliged to notify the plan administrator of any changes. The participant is entitled to 
obtain a bonus (the “Matching bonus”) according to the terms and conditions of the plan, provided that the participant is employed in the group on the Matching 
Date. cavotec sa shall make available the required amount in cash and the required number of shares for the Matching bonus, which the participants may acquire, 
based on the plan.

at inception, the maximum dilution for shareholders in cavotec as a result of each plan is one per cent or 713,972 shares per year. please refer to note 4 for 
more information about the creation of the contingent share capital. 

The maximum cost for the group for the duration of each plan (excluding social security payments) is reported in the table below. The calculation is based on the 
number co-investment shares awarded to lTip’s participants and on the assumptions that all targets are met, at the share price at the end of 31 Dec, 2013 (seK 
31.40). The plan has not been hedged.

 year's plan Potential no of Shares Maximum Cost 
2012 579,568 2.5 milion
2013 423,076 1.8 milion 

noTE 9. ShARE ownERShIP – BoARD of DIRECToRS AnD EXECUTIVE MAnAGEMEnT
based on publicly available information, the ownership by members of the board and senior management is as follow:

 Shareholders as of 31 December 2013 number %
lars hellman (through nordea life & pension) founder 7,512,551 10.5%
stefan widegren* & family chairman & founder 7,254,264 10.2%
fabio cannavale (through nomina sa & other) board member 6,948,046 9.7%
peter brandel founder 2,802,348 3.9%
ottonel popesco & family ceo 2,438,408 3.4%
leena essén (through anelea holdings & other) board member 2,181,607 3.1%
Michael widegren & family eMc member 1,045,625 1.5%
lakshmi Khanna board member 263,406 0.4%
erik lautmann board member 97,802 0.1%
patrick rosenwald eMc member 52,091 0.1%
erik chilo' eMc member 44,585 0.1%
christian bernadotte eMc member 44,438 0.1%
Michael scheepers eMc member 35,155 0.0%
Juergen strommer eMc member 27,578 0.0%
giorgio lingiardi eMc member 26,727 0.0%
christer granskog (through oy piceum ab) board member 20,000 0.0%
gary Matthews eMc member 19,578 0.0%
luciano corbetta eMc member 17,560 0.0%
Diego fiorentini group cfo 13,454 0.0%
gustavo Miller eMc member 13,077 0.0%
yann Duclot eMc member 10,262 0.0%
ester cadau eMc member 3,000 0.0%
Total 30,871,562 43.2%

* The amount includes the shares owned by Stefan Widegren, Lotten Widegren, Kristina Widegren and Thomas Widegren.
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noTE 10. CREDIT fACIlITy AGREEMEnTS
cavotec sa is the borrower under certain debt securities including the group syndicated credit facilities signed with seb ag and banca imi and the credit facility 
signed with cornér bank. as of year-end the total utilization was chf 2,265 thousands.

noTE 11. GUARAnTEES AnD CoMMITMEnTS
cavotec sa is a guarantor for the existing eur 61 million syndicated credit facility. 

cavotec sa carries joint liability in respect of the federal tax authorities for value added tax liabilities of its swiss subsidiary.  

The following table provides quantitative data regarding the company’s third-party guarantees.

Chf 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
advance payment bonds - 515,831
performance bond 1,815,544 578,472
letter of credits - 660,672
other guarantees 19,419 934,924
Total 1,834,963 2,689,899

noTE 12. RISk ASSESSMEnT DISCloSURE
cavotec sa, as the ultimate parent company of cavotec group, is fully integrated into the company-wide internal risk assessment process.

The company-wide internal risk assessment process consists of regular reporting to the board of Directors of cavotec sa on identified risks and management’s 
reaction to them. The procedures and actions to identify the risks, and where appropriate remediate, are performed by specific corporate functions as well as by 
the operating companies of the group. it also adopted and deployed group-wide the internal control system (“ics”). 

The ics is designed to identify, communicate, and mitigate risks in order to minimise their potential impact on the group. a risk assessment analysis was performed 
by the board of Directors. This analysis provided a high-level mapping of risks to allow group Management to make appropriate decisions on the future of the 
group. This map identified the following main areas of risks related to:
• Information and Consolidated Reporting
• Engaging the Group, Protecting its Assets, Compliance
• The Group’s Industry
• The Group’s Business
• Information, Subsidiary Reporting, Social Security and Tax
• Engaging Subsidiaries, Protecting their Assets, Local Compliance.

financial risks management is described in more detail in the risk Management note of the consolidated financial statements.

noTE 13. RElATED PARTy TRAnSACTIonS
as of 31 December 2013, the company has granted no loans, advances, borrowings or guarantees in favour of member of the board of Directors and members 
of the executive Management committee or parties closely related to such persons.

noTE 14. SUBSEQUEnT EVEnTS
There have been no events subsequent to the balance sheet date which require adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements or notes.

noTE 15. lEGAl RISkS
The outcome of any current or future proceedings cannot be predicted. it is therefore possible that legal or regulatory judgments or future settlements could give 
rise to expenses that are not covered, or not fully covered, by insurers’ compensation payments and could significantly affect our revenues and earnings. legal 
proceedings currently considered to involve material risks are outlined below. 

Mike Colaco litigation
The lawsuit against Mike colaco is progressing and discovery is approaching the final stage. The start of the trial has been set for october 2014.

noTE 16. oThER InDICATIonS REQUIRED By ThE lAw
applying the transitional provisions of the new accounting law, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions on accounting and 
financial reporting of the swiss code of obligations effective until 31 December 2012.

sTaTuTory financial sTaTeMenTs
CAVoTEC SA
notes to Statutory financial Statements
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CAVoTEC SA
Proposed appropriation of available earnings

The board of Directors proposes to the shareholders the following appropriation:

 Chf 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
carried forward from previous years (5,257,113) (3,686,530)
net loss for the financial year (664,601) (1,570,583)
Total earnings available (5,921,714) (5,257,113)
appropriation to general statutory reserves (retained earnings) - -
appropriation to other reserves - -
Proposed balance to be carried forward                                                            (5,921,714) (5,257,113)

in lieu of a dividend the board of Directors will propose to the ordinary general Meeting, to be held on 23 april 2014, a reduction in par value of the shares by 
chf 0.05 to chf 1.43.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers SA, via della Posta 7, casella postale, CH-6901 Lugano, Switzerland
Telefono: +41 58 792 65 00, Fax: +41 58 792 65 10, www.pwc.ch
PricewaterhouseCoopers SA is a member of the global PricewaterhouseCoopers network of firms, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.

Report of the statutory auditor
to the General Meeting of
Cavotec SA
Lugano

Report of the statutory auditor on the financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements of Cavotec SA, which comprise the 
income statement, balance sheet and notes (pages 89 to 94), for the year ended 31 December 2013. 

Board of Directors’ responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the requirements of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation. This responsibility 
includes designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the prepara-
tion of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting poli-
cies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We con-
ducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to 
the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appro-
priate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the account-
ing policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 comply with Swiss law 
and the company’s articles of incorporation.

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act 
(AOA) and independence (article 728 CO and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances 
incompatible with our independence.
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In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm 
that an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of financial state-
ments according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings comply with Swiss law and 
the company’s articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you 
be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers SA

Daniel Ketterer Efrem Dell'Era

Audit expert
Auditor in charge

Audit expert

Lugano, 18 March 2014
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where our coMpanies
are locaTeD*

cavoTec’s cenTres 
of eXcellence

CAVoTEC Alfo/MEyERInCk
overath, germany

CAVoTEC ConnECToRS
staffanstorp, sweden

CAVoTEC flADUnG
Dietzenbach, germany

CAVoTEC DABICo/InET
cypress, ca, usa

CAVoTEC MICRo-ConTRol
hell, norway
hausen, germany

CAVoTEC MooRMASTER 
Kaiapoi, new Zealand

CAVoTEC SPECIMAS 
nova Milanese, italy
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Head Office

Cavotec SA
via serafino balestra 27
ch-6900 lugano, switzerland
Telephone: +41 91 911 40 10
www.cavotec.com

* Branch offices and agents  
are not included on this map

Sales offices

Centres of excellence
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